

Approximation of the boundary in Galerkin boundary element methods

Author: Zeng, Yi

Publication Date: 1998

DOI: https://doi.org/10.26190/unsworks/10872

License:

https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/au/ Link to license to see what you are allowed to do with this resource.

Downloaded from http://hdl.handle.net/1959.4/66059 in https:// unsworks.unsw.edu.au on 2024-05-04

APPROXIMATION OF THE BOUNDARY IN GALERKIN BOUNDARY ELEMENT METHODS

by

YI ZENG

.

A Thesis submitted for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

 \mathbf{at}

School of Mathematics The University of New South Wales February 1998

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First of all I would like to express my immense gratitude to my supervisors, Dr William McLean and Professor Ian Sloan. I am greatly indebted to Bill for his specific guidance, valuable advice, precious time, and constant patience throughout the whole period that we worked together. I also thank him for his lectures in Advanced Numerical Analysis and for teaching me how to program in FORTRAN 90 which was used to obtain the numerical results in this thesis. I owe deeply grateful thanks to Ian for giving me the opportunity to join the Numerical Analysis group, and introducing me to the world of boundary integral equations.

I have benefited greatly from friendship of colleagues in Numerical Analysis group. In particular, my many thanks go to Dr Thanh Tran for his helpful suggestions and discussions regarding my work.

The work leading to this thesis was supported financially by Ian and Bill's ARC grant for my first year and by Australian Postgraduate Award for the remainder.

Finally, I wish to gratefully acknowledge my parents and all my family for their understanding and encouragement. My special deeply thanks are due to my husband for his patience, toleration and much more.

i

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that this submission is my own work and that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, it contains no material previously published or written by another person nor material which to a substantial extent has been accepted for the award of any other degree or diploma of a university or other institute of higher learning, except where due acknowledgement is made in the text.

YI ZENG

ABSTRACT

The Dirichlet boundary value problem is reformulated as a first kind integral equation on the boundary by means of single layer and double layer potentials. A Galerkin boundary element method is used to solve the integral equation numerically. The aim of the thesis is to study the errors associated with approximation of the boundary.

If the trial functions are piecewise polynomials of degree at most (r-1), and if an exact parametric representation of the boundary is used, then the Galerkin error in the energy norm is $O(h^{r+1/2})$. In 1977, Le Roux showed that this rate of convergence is preserved when continuous piecewise polynomial interpolation of degree (p-1) is used to approximate the boundary, provided $p \ge r+1$. We extend this result by allowing a very general class of boundary approximations accurate "to order p", that include, for instance, piecewise rational approximations.

Under appropriate conditions, the convergence is of a higher order when the error is measured in a more negative norm, resulting in a better error bound for the error in the potential. In the best case, this super-convergence effect leads to $O(h^{2r+1})$ accuracy if an exact parametric representation of the boundary is used. We consider the super-convergence property for an approximation to the boundary of order p, and we show that the $O(h^{2r+1})$ rate of convergence is maintained, provided $p \ge 2r + 1$.

We confirm the theoretical results in numerical experiments with piecewise constant (r = 1) trial functions, and with piecewise linear (p = 2) or piecewise quadratic (p = 3) approximation to the boundary. We then carry out numerical studies of some problems in which the boundary has a corner. A mesh grading is used to refine around the corner, and a singularity subtraction method is used to weaken the singularity in the kernel of the double layer potential operator occurring on the right-hand side.

Contents

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS											
D	DECLARATION										
ABSTRACT											
1	INT	TRODUCTION	1								
	1.1	Brief Review	2								
	1.2	Outline of the Thesis	7								
2	BOUNDARY ELEMENT METHOD										
	2.1	Boundary Integral Equations	10								
	2.2	Boundary Element Spaces	17								
	2.3	The Galerkin Method	21								
	2.4	Error Estimates of the Galerkin Method	32								

٠

3	\mathbf{PE}	RTURBATION OF THE BILINEAR FORM	36								
	3.1 The Perturbed Bilinear Form a_h										
	3.2	An Estimate for $a_h - a$	40								
	3.3	3 A Sharper Estimate of the Bilinear Form									
	3.4	Other Types of Boundary Approximation	59								
4	ERROR ESTIMATES										
	4.1	Stability Property	63								
	4.2	2 Error Estimates of the Perturbed Galerkin Method									
	4.3	Approximating the Potentials	75								
5	IMPLEMENTATION AND NUMERICAL EXPERIMENTS										
	5.1	.1 Strategies of Implementation									
	5.2										
	5.3	3 Numerical Experiments									
		5.3.1 Smooth Boundary	85								
		5.3.2 Corner Problem	87								
	Appendix: Evaluation of Some Integrals										

BIBLIOGRAPHY

104

Chapter 1

INTRODUCTION

1

1.1 Brief Review

The theory and application of integral equations is an important subject within applied mathematics. Integral equations are used as mathematical models for many and varied physical and engineering situations, and also occur as reformulations of other mathematical problems. A number of boundary value problems traditionally cast as partial differential equations can be reformulated as boundary integral equations. Boundary element methods are a class of numerical techniques for solving such integral equations. The literature is copious, such as Fichera [19], Hsiao and MacCamy [20], Jaswon [27], Jaswon and Symm [28] and some others in recent years [3, 7, 8, 9, 30, 33, 43, 45, 49, 50].

Many natural problems arising from physics and engineering can be mathematically described by Laplace's equation which is a basic model linear elliptic equation. The Dirichlet boundary value problem of the Laplace equation is defined by

$$\Delta \phi = 0 \qquad \text{in } \Omega, \tag{1.1.1}$$

with the boundary condition

$$\phi = g \qquad \text{on } \Gamma, \tag{1.1.2}$$

where Ω is a bounded domain in \mathbb{R}^n with boundary Γ . The solution ϕ is often some kind of potential function.

This Dirichlet boundary value problem can be reduced to a first kind integral equation on the boundary by means of single layer and double layer potentials. In the literature, the two standard approaches are known as the "direct" and "indirect" methods. In the direct method, the solution of the integral equation has a direct interpretation in terms of ϕ , namely, the solution of the integral equation is the

normal derivative of ϕ on the boundary. This approach is based on Green's theorem and yields an integral representation of ϕ in terms of both a single and a double layer potential. In the indirect method, the solution of the boundary integral equation is the 'single-layer density' as one seeks a representation of ϕ in the form of a single layer potential alone. Details of mathematical formulations of boundary integral equations for several of the most important linear elliptic boundary value problems can be found by Jaswon and Symm [28], Kress [30] and Chen and Zhou [10].

Boundary element methods are various methods of discretization of the boundary integral equations by finite elements on the boundary. Their main advantages are that they reduce the computational dimension by one and give a simple discretization of exterior problems. For the numerical analysis of boundary integral methods and certain recent developments, we refer to, for example, [30, 38, 37, 39, 40, 46]. Also [43, 49] give an overview of the theory of strong ellipticity for pseudo-differential operators as it applies to boundary integral equations. The survey of boundary integral equation methods [3] lays particular stress on three dimensional problems.

A variety of numerical methods has been devised to find numerical solutions of the boundary integral equations, such as the Galerkin method, the collocation method and the qualocation method plus some of their modifications. Most theoretical treatments of the boundary element method give great attention to the Galerkin method. Very complete discussions of the Galerkin method exist, see, for example, [21, 23, 39, 40, 44, 46, 48, 49]. The Galerkin method is the only one which is in a reasonably satisfactory condition for a wide class of boundary integral equations. The convergence of the Galerkin scheme is valid for a large class of boundary pseudodifferential equations in any space dimension. Many papers discuss this method for the first-kind boundary integral equations, such as [22, 24, 25, 41, 42]. In the computation of an approximate solution of a boundary integral equation, it is often convenient to approximate the boundary of the domain, for instance using an approximate parametric representation based on curved finite elements. In 1976, Nedelec first analysed a construction of an approximate boundary Γ in \mathbb{R}^3 , see [36], with the help of curvilinear triangles. Around the same time, Le Roux in [32] used arcs of polynomial curves to interpolate boundaries in \mathbb{R}^2 . The paper [4], given by Atkinson in 1985, proposed a framework for the analysis of collocation methods using quadratic isoparametric interpolation for second kind integral equations in three dimensions. The main purpose of this thesis is to extend the theoretical results of [32] by allowing more general types of boundary approximation and by considering super-convergence. We remark that our technical formulation of the boundary approximation differs from the one in [32] in the following sense. In [32], the approximate solution of the integral equation is defined on the approximate boundary and is then mapped onto the exact boundary. In the approach we use in this thesis, the approximate solution is thought of as being defined directly on the real boundary. (See section 2.3).

Let Γ be the smooth boundary of a domain in \mathbb{R}^2 . We consider Symm's first kind integral equation

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \int_{\Gamma} \log \frac{b}{|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}|} u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} = f(\mathbf{x}), \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma, \qquad (1.1.3)$$

where $d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$ is the element of arc length on Γ , and b is a constant. The boundary integral equation (1.1.3) is equivalent to the Dirichlet problem (1.1.1) and (1.1.2). For the indirect method, f = g; for the direct method, $f = -\frac{1}{2}g + Tg$, where T is a certain integral operator (see 2.1.8). We let u_h be an approximate solution generated by a Galerkin method and u_h^* be an approximation of u_h involving the normal projection onto the exact boundary; see (3.3.9).

We show that if the curved boundary is approximated "to order p", and if the

boundary element spaces are spaces of piecewise polynomials of order r (i.e., of degree $\leq r-1$), then

$$\|u-u_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le C \left(\|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + h^{p-1/2} \|u\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} + h^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)} \right),$$

where $|| \cdot ||_{H^s(\Gamma)}$ is the norm in the Sobolev space $H^s(\Gamma)$, f_h is an appropriate approximation to f, and the linear operator R_h depends on the way Γ is approximated, see (4.1.1).

Thus, if p = r + 1 and provided $||f_h - R_h f||_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} = O(h^{p-1/2})$, then

$$||u - u_h^*||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} = O(h^{r+1/2}),$$

and as a consequence

$$\|u-u_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}=O\left(h^r\right),$$

a result similar to that of Le Roux [32].

Under appropriate conditions, the convergence is of a higher order when the error is measured in a more negative norm, resulting in a better error bound for the error of the potential, i.e., the method has a super-convergence property. In fact,

$$\begin{aligned} \|u - u_h^*\|_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} &\leq Ch^{r+1/2} \|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + Ch^{r+p} \|u\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \\ &+ Ch^{2r+1} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)} + Ch^p \|u\|_{H^1(\Gamma)} + \|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}, \end{aligned}$$

and as a consequence, for the solution of the Dirichlet problem (1.1.1) and (1.1.2) we can achieve

$$\phi(\mathbf{z}) - \phi_h(\mathbf{z}) = O\left(h^{\min(2r+1,p)}
ight), \qquad \mathbf{z} \in \Omega,$$

where the approximate potential ϕ_h is computed using u_h in place of u in the integral representation for ϕ .

Boundary integral equations for domains with corners or edges, and methods for their approximate solution, have attracted more and more attention in recent years both in the theoretical and practical aspects. Many mathematicians have obtained satisfactory numerical results for problems on non-smooth boundaries using different boundary element methods. Costabel and Stephan [12] established error estimates for the Galerkin approximation of boundary integral equations on a polygon; Costabel and Stephan [13] and Elschner and Graham [15] discuss collocation methods for boundary integral equations on polygons; Elschner and Stephan [16] and Kress [31] are devoted to the boundary integral equation on curves with corners by using a discrete collocation and a Nyström method respectively; Elschner and Graham [18] treat quadrature methods; Elschner, Prössdorf and Sloan [17] deal with a qualocation method on the non-smooth boundary; and Stephan and Wendland [45] is concerned with mixed boundary value problems.

If the boundary is not smooth, then singularities in the solution u will generally be produced at the corners so that the rate of convergence will be degraded when a boundary element method is applied with a uniform mesh. In order to maintain the order of convergence, the mesh should be refined around the corners. These meshes are called graded meshes. Note that when the direct method is used in the formulation of the boundary integral equation, fixed singularities arise in the kernel of the double layer potential operator T which appears in the right-hand side of the integral equation. In this thesis, we address this problem in our numerical experiments. We use a singularity subtraction method that weakens the singularities in the kernel of T, making the integrals easier to deal with.

1.2 Outline of the Thesis

This thesis is organised as follows.

In Chapter 2, we give an introduction to the direct boundary integral method for the Dirichlet problem. We state existence and uniqueness results, and review the classical error estimates of the Galerkin method, as well as describing in some detail its practical implementation.

In Chapter 3, we introduce a general approximation scheme for curved boundaries that includes as special cases piecewise polynomial or piecewise rational approximations. Under the boundary approximation, we study the error between the bilinear form in the Galerkin equation and the approximate bilinear form in the perturbed Galerkin equation, and show that this error is $O(h^{p-1})$. After that, we adopt the approach in [32] to show a sharper bound of $O(h^p)$ for a related quantity.

The main concerns in Chapter 4 are the theoretical analysis of the stability property for the perturbed Galerkin method, the error estimates of the perturbed Galerkin method in both the $H^{-1/2}$ and H^{-r-1} norms.

Chapter 5 discusses the implementation of the Galerkin method in more detail and presents numerical results. Firstly we consider an integral equation with a smooth boundary. Next we try an integral equation with a non-smooth boundary. We consider the case when the boundary data g is the restriction to Γ of a smooth function on \mathbb{R}^2 , as well as the case when g is singular. For each problem, we compare the results for the exact boundary with those for piecewise linear and piecewise quadratic approximation to the boundary. We always use piecewise constant trial functions in the Galerkin procedure. Finally, there is an appendix containing formulas for some integrals used in evaluating the stiffness matrix in Chapter 5.

Chapter 2

BOUNDARY ELEMENT METHOD

2.1 Boundary Integral Equations

The solution of boundary value problems for many linear partial differential equations can be reduced to the application of boundary integral equations.

The reformulation of elliptic boundary value problems as boundary integral equation has been discussed by many mathematicians, such as [27, 28] for potential theory, [29] for elasticity, [11] for the Helmholtz equation and [20, 26] concentrating on formulations of integral equation of the first kind. The classical mathematical formulations are studied thoroughly in [35].

In the classical method of I. Fredholm, layer potentials are used to reformulate the Dirichlet and Neumann problems for the Laplace equation as Fredholm integral equations of the second kind over the boundary. We will now give alternative reformulations of the Dirichlet problem which lead instead to Fredholm integral equations of the first kind over the boundary. This gives an emphasis to the relationship between the Dirichlet bilinear form associated with the Laplace operator and the bilinear form associated with the boundary integral operator.

Proofs of Theorems 2.1.1 - 2.1.5 can be found in the paper of Hsiao and Wendland [21] for smooth curves, or Costabel [14] for Lipschitz curves.

Let $\Omega^+ \in \mathbb{R}^n$ (n = 2 or 3) be a bounded Lipschitz domain with boundary Γ , and let Ω^- be the complement of $\Omega^+ \cup \Gamma$ in \mathbb{R}^n , so that

$$\mathbb{R}^n = \Omega^+ \stackrel{.}{\cup} \Gamma \stackrel{.}{\cup} \Omega^- \quad \text{and} \qquad \quad \partial \Omega^+ = \Gamma = \partial \Omega^-,$$

where the dot over \cup indicates a disjoint union. Denote by ν the unit inward normal to Ω^+ , let $d\sigma_y$ denote the element of arc length or the surface element on Γ . If ϕ is a

function defined on $\Omega^+ \dot{\cup} \Omega^-$, then ϕ^{\pm} denotes the one-sided trace of ϕ on Γ from Ω^{\pm} .

All the Sobolev spaces involved in the following will be defined in Section 2.2.

Let Δ be the Laplacian operator, and suppose $\phi \in H^1(\Omega^+)$ is the weak solution of the Dirichlet problem

$$\Delta \phi = 0 \qquad \text{in } \Omega^+, \tag{2.1.1}$$

$$\phi^+ = g \qquad \text{on } \Gamma, \tag{2.1.2}$$

i.e., ϕ satisfies the essential boundary condition (2.1.2) in the sense of traces, and

$$\int_{\Omega^+} \nabla \phi \cdot \nabla \psi \, d\mathbf{x} = 0 \qquad \quad \forall \, \psi \in H^1(\Omega^+)$$

with $\psi^+ = 0$ on Γ .

There is a standard method of reformulating the Dirichlet problem as a boundary integral equation of the form

$$Au = f \qquad \text{on } \Gamma. \tag{2.1.3}$$

For all $\mathbf{z} \in \mathbb{R}^n \setminus \{0\}$, let $K(\mathbf{z})$ be the fundamental solution of the Laplace equation, i.e.,

$$K(\mathbf{z}) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \log \frac{b}{|\mathbf{z}|}$$
 if $n = 2$,

or

$$K(\mathbf{z}) = \frac{1}{4\pi} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{z}|} \qquad \text{if } n = 3,$$

where b is an arbitrary constant. Observe that K is harmonic in $\mathbb{R}^n \setminus \{0\}$.

Remark: The scaling parameter b contained in the logarithmic kernel $K(\mathbf{z})$ should be chosen larger than $cap(\Gamma)$ which is the logarithmic capacity (or transfinite diameter) of the boundary Γ . The characterisation of logarithmic capacity is:

$$\log \frac{1}{\operatorname{cap}(\Gamma)} = \min_{u \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \int_{\Gamma} \int_{\Gamma} \log \frac{1}{|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}|} u(\mathbf{y}) u(\mathbf{x}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}.$$
 (2.1.4)

See [34], [41] or [47] for details of the role $cap(\Gamma)$ plays.

The direct boundary integral formulation of the Dirichlet problem begins with the following representation formula (third Green identity), for a proof, see Costabel [14].

Theorem 2.1.1 Let $g \in H^{1/2}(\Gamma)$. If $\phi \in H^1(\Omega^+)$ is the weak solution of (2.1.1) and (2.1.2), then $\partial \phi / \partial \nu \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$ and

$$\phi(\mathbf{x}) = \int_{\Gamma} g(\mathbf{y}) \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} - \int_{\Gamma} \frac{\partial \phi}{\partial \nu}(\mathbf{y}) \, K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Omega^+,$$

where $\nu_{\mathbf{y}}$ is a unit inward normal to Ω^+ at the point $\mathbf{y} \in \Gamma$.

Given a function u defined on Γ , the single layer potential $\mathcal{V}u$ and the double layer potential $\mathcal{W}u$ are defined by

$$\mathcal{V}u(\mathbf{z}) \equiv \int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) \, u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{z} \in \Omega^+ \stackrel{.}{\cup} \Omega^-, \qquad (2.1.5)$$

$$\mathcal{W}u(\mathbf{z}) \equiv \int_{\Gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) \, u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{z} \in \Omega^+ \stackrel{.}{\cup} \Omega^-.$$
(2.1.6)

Notice that

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{\nu(\mathbf{y}) \cdot (\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y})}{|\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}|^2} \quad \text{if } n = 2,$$

or

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) = \frac{1}{4\pi} \frac{\nu(\mathbf{y}) \cdot (\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y})}{|\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}|^3} \quad \text{if } n = 3,$$

where $|\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}|$ is the Euclidean distance between \mathbf{z} and \mathbf{y} .

We then define the linear operators A and T by

$$Au \equiv (\mathcal{V}u)^+ = (\mathcal{V}u)^-, \qquad (2.1.7)$$

$$Tu \equiv (\mathcal{W}u)^+ + (\mathcal{W}u)^-. \tag{2.1.8}$$

It is not difficult to show that the single layer boundary integral operator A is given by

$$(Au)(\mathbf{x}) \equiv \int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma.$$
(2.1.9)

Letting u = 1, from Theorem 2.1.1 we have

$$\mathcal{W}1 = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{on } \Omega^+ \\ 0 & \text{on } \Omega^-, \end{cases}$$
(2.1.10)

 \mathbf{SO}

$$(\mathcal{W}1)^+ = 1, \qquad (\mathcal{W}1)^- = 0,$$

and from (2.1.8),

$$T1 = 1.$$
 (2.1.11)

For a continuous function u defined on Γ , it can be shown that

$$\lim_{\mathbf{z} \to \mathbf{x}} \int_{\Gamma} [u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$
$$\mathbf{z} \in \Omega^{\pm}$$
$$= \int_{\Gamma} [u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad x \in \Gamma, \qquad (2.1.12)$$

and by (2.1.10),

$$\mathcal{W}u(\mathbf{z}) = \begin{cases} u(\mathbf{x}) + \int_{\Gamma} [u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, & \mathbf{z} \in \Omega^{+}, \\ \int_{\Gamma} [u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, & \mathbf{z} \in \Omega^{-}. \end{cases}$$
(2.1.13)

Therefore, we have

$$(\mathcal{W}u)^{+}(\mathbf{x}) = u(\mathbf{x}) + \int_{\Gamma} [u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma, (2.1.14)$$

$$(\mathcal{W}u)^{-}(\mathbf{x}) = \int_{\Gamma} \left[u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x}) \right] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma.$$
(2.1.15)

By the definition of the linear operator T in (2.1.8), the double layer boundary integral operator T can be written as

$$Tu(\mathbf{x}) = u(\mathbf{x}) + 2 \int_{\Gamma} [u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}.$$
 (2.1.16)

Moreover, we have

$$\int_{\Gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{if } \mathbf{x} \in \Omega^+, \\ \frac{1}{2} & \text{if } \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma \text{ (and } \Gamma \text{ is smooth)}, \\ 0 & \text{if } \mathbf{x} \in \Omega^-. \end{cases}$$
(2.1.17)

Thus, if Γ is smooth in a neighbourhood of x then $(Tu)(\mathbf{x})$ can be also written as

$$(Tu)(\mathbf{x}) = 2 \int_{\Gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) u(\mathbf{y}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma.$$

With the above definitions of the single and double layer potentials, Costabel [14] shows that the following mapping properties hold, even for a general Lipschitz domain Ω^+ .

Theorem 2.1.2 The linear operators

$$\begin{split} \mathcal{V} &: \ H^{-1/2}(\Gamma) \longrightarrow H^1(\Omega^+), \\ \mathcal{W} &: \ H^{1/2}(\Gamma) \longrightarrow H^1(\Omega^+), \\ A &: \ H^{-1/2}(\Gamma) \longrightarrow H^{1/2}(\Gamma), \\ T &: \ H^{1/2}(\Gamma) \longrightarrow H^{1/2}(\Gamma) \end{split}$$

are continuous and bounded.

,

We denote the normal derivatives of a function ϕ by

$$\phi_{\nu}^{\pm} \equiv \nu \cdot (\nabla \phi)^{\pm} \equiv \left(\frac{\partial \phi}{\partial \nu}\right)^{\pm}.$$

The single and the double layer potentials have following main properties.

Theorem 2.1.3 Let $\mathcal{V}u$ and $\mathcal{W}u$ be the single and double layer potentials, respectively, with density u.

i) If $u \in H^{-\frac{1}{2}}(\Gamma)$, then $\mathcal{V}u$ satisfies

$$(\mathcal{V}u)^+ - (\mathcal{V}u)^- = 0,$$
 (2.1.18)

$$(\mathcal{V}u)_{\nu}^{+} - (\mathcal{V}u)_{\nu}^{-} = -u. \qquad (2.1.19)$$

ii) If $u \in H^{\frac{1}{2}}(\Gamma)$, then Wu satisfies

$$(\mathcal{W}u)_{\nu}^{+} - (\mathcal{W}u)_{\nu}^{-} = 0, \qquad (2.1.20)$$

$$(\mathcal{W}u)^+ - (\mathcal{W}u)^- = u.$$
 (2.1.21)

The boundary integral equation (2.1.3) follows at once from the results in Theorem 2.1.3.

Theorem 2.1.4 Let $g \in H^{\frac{1}{2}}(\Gamma)$ and $f = -\frac{1}{2}g + \frac{1}{2}Tg$.

i) If $\phi \in H^1(\Omega^+)$ is the weak solution of (2.1.1) and (2.1.2), then the normal derivative $\phi^+_{\nu} \in H^{-\frac{1}{2}}(\Gamma)$ is a solution of the boundary integral equation

$$A\phi_{\nu}^{+} = f \qquad on \ \Gamma.$$

ii) Conversely, if $u \in H^{-\frac{1}{2}}(\Gamma)$ is a solution of Au = f, then $\phi = \mathcal{W}g - \mathcal{V}u$ is a weak solution of (2.1.1) and (2.1.2), and $u = \phi_{\nu}^{+}$.

The solution technique based on Theorem 2.1.4 is called the direct boundary integral method. Written out in full, the boundary integral equation Au = f is

$$\int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} = \int_{\Gamma} [g(\mathbf{y}) - g(\mathbf{x})] \, \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma, \quad (2.1.22)$$

or

$$\int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} = -\frac{1}{2} \, g(\mathbf{x}) + \int_{\Gamma} g(\mathbf{y}) \, \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma. \tag{2.1.23}$$

We now define the bilinear form associated with the boundary integral operator A,

$$a(u,v) = \langle Au, v \rangle = \int_{\Gamma} \int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, u(\mathbf{y}) \, v(\mathbf{x}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$
(2.1.24)

so that the weak form of the integral equation (2.1.3) is, if $f \in H^{1/2}(\Gamma)$,

$$a(u,v) = \langle f,v \rangle$$
 for $v \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$, (2.1.25)

where the inner product is defined as

$$\langle v,w\rangle = \langle v,w\rangle_0 = \int_{\Gamma} v \, w \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}}$$

Recall from (2.1.4) that $cap(\Gamma)$ denote the logarithmic capacity of Γ .

Theorem 2.1.5 The formula (2.1.24) defines a bounded bilinear form

$$a: H^{-1/2}(\Gamma) \times H^{-1/2}(\Gamma) \to \mathbb{R}_{+}$$

i.e., there is a constant C such that

$$|a(u,v)| \le C ||u||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} ||v||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \qquad \forall u, v \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma).$$

Furthermore, if $b > cap(\Gamma)$, then a is $H^{-1/2}(\Gamma) - elliptic$, i.e., there is a constant $\gamma > 0$ such that

$$a(u,u) \ge \gamma \|u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 \qquad \forall \ u \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma).$$
 (2.1.26)

The existence and uniqueness of a weak solution of Au = f is guaranteed by the Riesz representation theorem [30, Theorem 4.8] applied to the space $H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$ and the energy inner product a(u, v). **Theorem (Riesz representation theorem) 2.1.6** Let H be a Hilbert space. Then for each bounded linear functional $F : H \to \mathbb{R}$ there exists a unique element $u \in H$ such that for all $v \in H$ there holds

$$F(v) = \langle u, v \rangle.$$

It was proved in [21] that

Theorem 2.1.7 If Γ is C^{∞} , then

$$A: H^{s-1/2}(\Gamma) \longrightarrow H^{s+1/2}(\Gamma)$$

is invertible for all $s \in \mathbb{R}$.

2.2 Boundary Element Spaces

For the remainder of this Chapter, we assume that the dimension n = 2, and that the boundary Γ is a smooth, closed curve in \mathbb{R}^2 .

Suppose that

$$\mathbf{F}: \mathbb{R} \to \Gamma \tag{2.2.1}$$

is a smooth, 1-periodic map that satisfies

$$|\mathbf{F}'(\tau)| \ge C > 0$$
 for $0 \le \tau \le 1$, (2.2.2)

and gives Γ a counterclockwise orientation. We choose points in the interval [0, 1],

$$0 = \tau_0 < \tau_1 < \dots < \tau_{N-1} < \tau_N = 1.$$

Put

$$h_k = \tau_k - \tau_{k-1}$$

and let

$$h = \max_{1 \le k \le N} h_k.$$

For a uniform mesh, $h = h_k$ for all k.

Under the parametric representation \mathbf{F} of Γ , for any $\mathbf{x} \in \Gamma$, we have

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{F}(\tau). \tag{2.2.3}$$

The curve interval Δ_k is defined by

$$\Delta_k = \{ \mathbf{F}(\tau) : \tau_{k-1} \le \tau \le \tau_k \}, \qquad k = 1, \dots, N_k$$

so that

$$\Gamma = \cup_{k=1}^N \triangle_k$$

In order to define the boundary interpolations we use in the next Chapter, we introduce a specific mapping on the arc of boundary. We have, for each Δ_k ,

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}:[0,1] \rightarrow riangle_{k}, \qquad \qquad k=1,\ldots,N,$$

defined by

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) = \mathbf{F}[(1-s)\tau_{k-1} + s\tau_{k}]$$

= $\mathbf{F}[\tau_{k-1} + s(\tau_{k} - \tau_{k-1})]$
= $\mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1} + sh_{k}), \qquad s \in [0,1].$ (2.2.4)

Let us introduce the definition of the Sobolev spaces $H^k(\Omega^+)$ and $H^s(\Gamma)$. Detailed studies of Sobolev spaces can be found in [1]. Suppose now that $k \ge 1$ is an integer. The Sobolev space $H^k(\Omega^+)$ will be defined in the norm $\|\cdot\|_{H^k(\Omega^+)}$, which is

$$\|u\|_{H^{k}(\Omega^{+})}^{2} = \sum_{0 \le |\alpha| \le k} \|D^{\alpha}u\|_{L^{2}(\Omega^{+})}^{2},$$

where D^{α} is viewed as a distribution on Ω^+ and $L^2(\Omega^+)$ is the usual Lebesgue space of square-integrable functions, with norm

$$||u||_{L^2(\Omega^+)}^2 = \int_{\Omega^+} u^2 dx.$$

For an integer $r \ge 0$, the norm in the Sobolev space $H^r(\Gamma)$ is defined by

$$\|u\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)}^{2} = \sum_{i=0}^{r} \int_{0}^{1} \left| \left(\frac{d}{d\tau}\right)^{i} \left[(u \circ \mathbf{F})(\tau) \right] \right|^{2} d\tau.$$
 (2.2.5)

For $s = r + \mu$, $0 < \mu < 1$, the norm in the Sobolev spaces $H^s(\Gamma)$ is defined by

$$\|u\|_{H^{s}(\Gamma)}^{2} = \|u\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)}^{2} + [(u \circ \mathbf{F})(\tau)]_{\mu}^{2}, \qquad (2.2.6)$$

where

$$\begin{split} [v]_{\mu}^{2} &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{|v(\tau) - v(\tau')|^{2}}{|e^{i2\pi\tau} - e^{i2\pi\tau'}|^{1+2\mu}} \, d\tau \, d\tau' \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{|v(\tau) - v(\tau')|^{2}}{|2\sin\pi(\tau - \tau')|^{1+2\mu}} \, d\tau \, d\tau'. \end{split}$$

The norm in the Sobolev space $H^{-s}(\Gamma)$ is defined by duality, i.e.,

$$\|u\|_{H^{-s}(\Gamma)} = \sup_{\phi \in H^{s}(\Gamma)} \frac{|\langle u, \phi \rangle_{0}|}{\|\phi\|_{H^{s}(\Gamma)}}.$$
(2.2.7)

Note that if s = 0, $H^0(\Gamma)$ coincides with $L^2(\Gamma)$. Also,

$$H^{s}(\Gamma) = \{ u |_{r} : u \in H^{s+1/2}(\mathbb{R}^{2}) \}$$
 for $s > 0$.

In the approximation of a variational problem, we choose generally piecewise polynomial functions which can form finite dimensional subspaces of a Sobolev space $H^{s}(\Gamma)$. These subspaces are referred to as boundary element spaces, and within them one seeks the approximate solutions of the integral equation. We define boundary element spaces $S_{h}^{r,e} \subseteq H^{s}(\Gamma)$ as follows:

i) For r > e = 0,

 $S_h^{r,0} = \{u : \text{ for each } k, \text{ the function } s \mapsto |\mathbf{m}'_k(s)| u[\mathbf{m}_k(s)] \text{ is a polynomial}$ of degree $\leq r-1 \text{ for } 0 \leq s \leq 1\}.$

ii) For r > e = 1,

$$S_h^{r,1} = S_h^{r,0} \cap C(\Gamma).$$

Here, $C(\Gamma)$ is the space of continuous functions on Γ .

One sees that,

- 1. A function $u \in S_h^{r,0}$ need not be continuous at the mesh breakpoints $\tau_k, k = 1, \ldots, N$;
- 2. The functions in $S_h^{r,1}$ are continuous on Γ ;
- 3. If $s < e + \frac{1}{2}$, then $S_h^{r,e} \subset H^s(\Gamma)$;
- 4. The dimension of $S_h^{r,e}$ is (r-e)N for e=0 or 1.

The following properties (see, for example [2]) will be frequently used in the error estimates for the Galerkin method.

Definition 2.2.1 The mesh is said to be quasi-uniform if there exists C > 0 such that

$$\max_k h_k \le C \min_k h_k.$$

Theorem 2.2.1 Suppose that the boundary Γ is C^r .

i) (Approximation property) Let $\beta < e + 1/2$. There exists a family of approximation operators $P_h : H^{\beta}(\Gamma) \to S_h^{r,e}(\Gamma)$ such that if $\alpha \leq \beta \leq t \leq r$, then

$$\|u - P_h u\|_{H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{t-\alpha} \|u\|_{H^t(\Gamma)} \qquad \text{for all } u \in H^t(\Gamma).$$
(2.2.8)

Thus,

$$\inf_{v_h \in S_h^{r,e}(\Gamma)} \|v_h - u\|_{H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{t-\alpha} \|u\|_{H^t(\Gamma)} \qquad \forall u \in H^t(\Gamma).$$
(2.2.9)

ii) (Inverse property) If the mesh is quasi-uniform, then for $\alpha \le t < e + 1/2$, we have

$$\|v\|_{H^t(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{\alpha-t} \|v\|_{H^\alpha(\Gamma)} \qquad \forall v \in S_h^{r,e}.$$
(2.2.10)

Remark: Throughout all the following, C denotes a generic constant which can take different values at different occurrences.

2.3 The Galerkin Method

Using $S_h^{r,e} \subset H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$ as the boundary element space, the Galerkin method for the integral equation Au = f is : find an approximate solution $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ such that

$$a(u_h, v_h) = \langle f, v_h \rangle \qquad \forall v_h \in S_h^{r, e}.$$
(2.3.1)

The equation (2.3.1) is called the Galerkin equation.

For any k, l = 1, ..., N, put $\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{m}_l(t) \in \Delta_l$, and $\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{m}_k(s) \in \Delta_k$, where $0 \leq s, t \leq 1$. This parametric representation leads to the formula (recall n = 2)

 $a(u_h, v_h)$

$$= \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_{\Gamma} \int_{\Gamma} \log\left(\frac{b}{|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}|}\right) u_h(\mathbf{y}) v_h(\mathbf{x}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$

$$= \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{l=1}^N \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(\frac{b}{|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}\right) u_h[\mathbf{m}_k(s)] v_h[\mathbf{m}_l(t)] |\mathbf{m}_k'(s)| |\mathbf{m}_l'(t)| ds dt.$$

Let us choose a basis $\{P_1, \ldots, P_r\}$ for the space of polynomials of degree $\leq r - 1$, and write then u_h and v_h as

$$u_h[\mathbf{m}_k(s)] = \sum_{i=1}^r U_{k,i} \frac{P_i(s)}{|\mathbf{m}'_k(s)|}, \qquad k = 1, \dots, N, \qquad (2.3.2)$$

$$v_h[\mathbf{m}_l(t)] = \sum_{j=1}^r V_{l,j} \frac{P_j(t)}{|\mathbf{m}'_l(t)|}, \qquad l = 1, \dots, N$$
(2.3.3)

for $0 \le s \le 1$, $0 \le t \le 1$. Expressing the bilinear form in terms of coefficients in the expansions (2.3.2) and (2.3.3), we have

$$\begin{aligned} a(u_{h}, v_{h}) \\ &= \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \log \left(\frac{b}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t)|} \right) \left[\sum_{i=1}^{r} U_{k,i} P_{i}(s) \right] \left[\sum_{j=1}^{r} V_{l,j} P_{j}(t) \right] ds dt \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} [V_{l,1}, \dots, V_{l,r}] A^{(k,l)} \begin{bmatrix} U_{k,1} \\ \vdots \\ U_{k,r} \end{bmatrix} \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \mathbf{V}^{(l)} A^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U}^{(k)}, \end{aligned}$$

where

$$\mathbf{U}^{(k)} = [U_{k,1}, \dots, U_{k,r}]^T,$$
$$\mathbf{V}^{(l)} = [V_{l,1}, \dots, V_{l,r}],$$

and

$$A^{(k,l)} = \left[a_{ij}^{(k,l)}\right]_{1 \le i,j \le r}, \qquad k,l = 1, \dots, N$$
(2.3.4)

is the $r \times r$ element stiffness matrix for $\Delta_k \times \Delta_l$ whose entries are

$$a_{ij}^{(k,l)} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(\frac{b}{|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}\right) P_i(s) P_j(t) \, ds \, dt.$$
(2.3.5)

For the case e = 0, the trial function $u_h \in S_h^{r,0}$ may be discontinuous at the breakpoints τ_k , k = 1, ..., N. There are Nr unknowns $U_{k,i}$ and N^2 element stiffness matrices, each $r \times r$, that combine to yield an $(Nr) \times (Nr)$ system of linear equations $A\mathbf{U} = \mathbf{F}$, where A, \mathbf{F} and \mathbf{U} will be constructed below.

Let $\dot{A}^{(k,l)}$ be the unique $Nr \times Nr$ matrix such that

$$\mathbf{V}^{(l)T} A^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U}^{(k)} = \mathbf{V}^T \dot{A}^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U}, \qquad k, l = 1, \dots, N$$

for any

$$\mathbf{U} = [U_{1,1}, \dots, U_{1,r}, U_{2,1}, \dots, U_{2,r}, \dots, U_{N,1}, \dots, U_{N,r}]^T,$$
$$\mathbf{V} = [V_{1,1}, \dots, V_{1,r}, V_{2,1}, \dots, V_{2,r}, \dots, V_{N,1}, \dots, V_{N,r}]^T.$$

For example: If e = 0, r = 2, N = 3, then $\dot{A}^{(k,l)} \in \mathbb{R}^{6\times 6}$ is a 6×6 matrix, containing 2×2 element stiffness matrix $A^{(k,l)}$. Writing $a_{ij} = a_{ij}^{(k,l)}$, we illustrate $\dot{A}^{(k,l)}$ and $A^{(k,l)}$ in Table 2.1.

The right-hand side of equation (2.3.1) can be written

$$\begin{aligned} \langle f, v_h \rangle &= \int_{\Gamma} f(\mathbf{x}) \, v_h(\mathbf{x}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} \\ &= \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} f[\mathbf{m}_l(t)] \, v_h[\mathbf{m}_l(t)] \, |\mathbf{m}_l'(t)| \, dt \\ &= \sum_{l=1}^{N} [V_{l,1}, \dots, V_{l,r}] \, \mathbf{F}^{(l)}. \end{aligned}$$

$\dot{A}^{(1,1)} =$					$\dot{A}^{(1,2)} =$								$\dot{A}^{(1,3)} =$								
	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0	0	0		0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0		0	0	0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	
	a_{21}	a_{22}	0	0	0	0		0	0	a_{21}	a_{22}	0	0		0	0	0	0	a_{21}	a ₂₂	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	j	0	0	0	0	0	0	
$\dot{A}^{(2,1)} =$, <i>1</i>	$\dot{A}^{(2,2)} = $							$\dot{A}^{(2,3)} =$							
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0	0	0		0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0		0	0	0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	
	a_{21}	a_{22}	0	0	0	0		0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0		0	0	0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
$\dot{A}^{(3,1)} =$							$\dot{A}^{(3,2)} =$							$\dot{A}^{(3,3)} =$							
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	•
	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0	0	0		0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0		0	0	0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	
	a_{21}	a_{22}	0	0	0	0		0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	0	0		0	0	0	0	a_{11}	a_{12}	

Table 2.1: Case of e = 0, r = 2 and N = 3.

The vector $\mathbf{F}^{(l)} = \left[\mathbf{F}_{j}^{(l)}\right]_{1 \leq j \leq r} \in \mathbb{R}^{r}$ is called the element load vector for Δ_{l} , where

$$\mathbf{F}_j^{(l)} = \int_0^1 f[\mathbf{m}_l(t)] P_j(t) dt, \qquad j = 1, \dots, r.$$

Define

$$n_k(s) = \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s) \right| \, \nu[\mathbf{m}_k(s)] = \left[-(\mathbf{m}'_k)_2(s), (\mathbf{m}'_k)_1(s) \right],$$

where $\nu[\mathbf{m}_k(s)]$ is the inward unit normal via the counter-clockwise orientation of the curve. If f is the right hand side from (2.1.22) then we have

$$f[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] = \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\nu[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] \cdot [\mathbf{m}_{l}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t)|^{2}} \left(g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] - g[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)]\right) \left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s)\right| \, ds$$
$$= \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{n_{k}(s) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_{l}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t)|^{2}} \left(g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] - g[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)]\right) \, ds,$$

or if f is from (2.1.23) then

$$f[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] = -\frac{1}{2} g[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] + \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{n_{k}(s) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_{l}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t)|^{2}} g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] ds.$$

Similarly, let $\dot{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)}$ be the unique vector in \mathbb{R}^{Nr} such that

$$\mathbf{V}^{(l)^T}\mathbf{F}^{(l)} = \mathbf{V}^T \dot{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)}, \qquad l = 1, \dots, N$$

for

$$\mathbf{V}^{T} = [V_{1,1}, \dots, V_{1,r}, V_{2,1}, \dots, V_{2,r}, \dots, V_{N,1}, \dots, V_{N,r}].$$

Synthesising the expressions above,

$$a(u_h, v_h) = \langle f, v_h \rangle$$
$$\iff \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{l=1}^N \mathbf{V}^{(l)T} A^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U}^{(k)} = \sum_{l=1}^N \mathbf{V}^{(l)T} \mathbf{F}^{(l)}$$

where

$$A = \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \dot{A}^{(k,l)}$$
(2.3.6)

is an $Nr \times Nr$ matrix, and

$$\mathbf{F} = \sum_{l=1}^{N} \dot{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)} \tag{2.3.7}$$

is a vector in \mathbb{R}^{Nr} .

We call A the global stiffness matrix for Γ , and **F** the global load vector for Γ .

Thus, we conclude that the Galerkin equation (2.3.1) holds for all $v_h \in S_h^{r,0}$ if and only if

$$\mathbf{V}^T A \mathbf{U} = \mathbf{V}^T \mathbf{F} \qquad \text{for all } V \in \mathbb{R}^{Nr},$$

or equivalently

$$A\mathbf{U} = \mathbf{F}.\tag{2.3.8}$$

That is, finding u_h reduces to seeking $U_{k,i}$ for k = 1, ..., N and i = 1, ..., r by solving the system of linear equations (2.3.8).

We now consider the case e = 1, in which a function $u_h \in S_h^{r,1}$ is continuous at the breakpoints τ_k (k = 1, ..., N). Let $\{P_i\}, i = 1, ..., r$, be a basis of the space of polynomials of degree $\leq r - 1$ satisfying

$$P_{i}(1) = \begin{cases} 0 & 1 \le i \le r - 1, \\ 1 & i = r, \end{cases}$$
$$P_{i}(0) = \begin{cases} 0 & 2 \le i \le r, \\ 1 & i = 1. \end{cases}$$

From the parametric representation (2.2.4), we have

$$\mathbf{m}'_k(s) = h_k \mathbf{F}'(\tau_{k-1} + sh_k), \qquad s \in [0, 1].$$
 (2.3.9)

Moreover,

$$\mathbf{m}'_{k}(1) = h_{k}\mathbf{F}'(\tau_{k}),$$

$$\mathbf{m}'_{k+1}(0) = h_{k+1}\mathbf{F}'(\tau_{k}).$$

From expression (2.3.2), we obtain

$$u_h[\mathbf{m}_k(1)] = \frac{U_{k,r}}{|\mathbf{m}'_k(1)|},$$
 (2.3.10)

$$u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k+1}(0)] = \frac{U_{k+1,1}}{|\mathbf{m}_{k+1}'(0)|}.$$
 (2.3.11)

Similarly for $v_h[\mathbf{m}_l(1)]$ and $v_h[\mathbf{m}_{l+1}(0)]$.

Assuming the function u_h is continuous at τ_k ,

$$u_h[\mathbf{m}_k(1)] = u_h[\mathbf{m}_{k+1}(0)], \qquad 1 \le k \le N - 1,$$

$$u_h[\mathbf{m}_N(1)] = u_h[\mathbf{m}_1(0)],$$

with

$$U_{k,r} = \alpha_k U_{k+1,1}, \qquad 1 \le k \le N - 1, \qquad (2.3.12)$$

$$U_{N,r} = \alpha_N U_{1,1}, \qquad (2.3.13)$$

where

$$\alpha_k = \frac{|\mathbf{m}'_k(1)|}{|\mathbf{m}'_{k+1}(0)|} \quad \text{and} \quad \alpha_N = \frac{|\mathbf{m}'_N(1)|}{|\mathbf{m}'_1(0)|}.$$

In this case, we take for the solution vector $U \in \mathbb{R}^{N(r-1)}$,

$$\mathbf{U} = [U_{1,1}, U_{1,2}, \dots, U_{1,r-1}, U_{2,1}, \dots, U_{2,r-1}, \dots, U_{N,1}, \dots, U_{N,r-1}]^T$$

which satisfies an $N(r-1) \times N(r-1)$ system of linear equations $A\mathbf{U} = \mathbf{F}$.

We now construct the matrix A and right-hand side \mathbf{F} .

If
$$1 \le j \le N - 1$$
, let
 $U_{j,1} = U_{r(j-1)-(j-2)}, \quad U_{j,2} = U_{r(j-1)-(j-3)}, \quad \dots, \quad \frac{1}{\alpha_j} U_{j,r} = U_{j+1,1} = U_{j(r-1)+1},$
(2.3.14)

and if j = N, let

$$U_{N,1} = U_{r(N-1)-(N-2)}, \quad U_{N,2} = U_{r(N-1)-(N-3)}, \quad \dots, \quad \frac{1}{\alpha_N} U_{N,r} = U_{1,1} = U_1.$$
 (2.3.15)

By applying (2.3.14) and (2.3.15), the left-hand side of the Galerkin equation has the following expression,

$$a(u_{h}, v_{h}) = \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} [V_{l,1}, V_{l,2}, \dots, V_{l,r}] A^{(k,l)} \begin{bmatrix} U_{k,1} \\ U_{k,2} \\ \vdots \\ U_{k,r} \end{bmatrix}$$

$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \left[V_{r(l-1)-(l-2)}, V_{r(l-1)-(l-3)}, \dots, \alpha_{l} V_{l(r-1)+1} \right] A^{(k,l)} \begin{bmatrix} U_{r(k-1)-(k-2)} \\ U_{r(k-1)-(k-3)} \\ \vdots \\ \alpha_{k} U_{k(r-1)+1} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \left[V_{r(l-1)-(l-2)}, V_{r(l-1)-(l-3)}, \dots, V_{l(r-1)+1} \right] \hat{A}^{(k,l)} \begin{bmatrix} U_{r(k-1)-(k-2)} \\ U_{r(k-1)-(k-3)} \\ \vdots \\ U_{k(r-1)+1} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \mathbf{V}^{(l)^{T}} \hat{A}^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U}^{(k)}$$

provided

$$\mathbf{U}^{(k)} = \left[U_{r(k-1)-(k-2)}, U_{r(k-1)-(k-3)}, \dots, U_{k(r-1)+1} \right]^T,$$
$$\mathbf{V}^{(l)^T} = \left[V_{r(l-1)-(l-2)}, V_{r(l-1)-(l-3)}, \dots, V_{l(r-1)+1} \right],$$

and

$$\hat{A}^{(k,l)} = M_l A^{(k,l)} M_k = \left[\hat{a}_{ij}^{k,l} \right]_{1 \le i,j \le r}, \qquad 1 \le k, l \le N,$$

where $A^{(k,l)}$ is defined by (2.3.4), and M_k is the $r \times r$ matrix

$$M_k = \left[egin{array}{ccccccc} 1 & 0 & \cdots & 0 \ 0 & 1 & \cdots & 0 \ dots & dots & \ddots & dots \ 0 & 0 & \cdots & lpha_k \end{array}
ight].$$

Let $\dot{A}^{(k,l)} \in \mathbb{R}^{N(r-1) \times N(r-1)}$ be the unique matrix such that

$$\mathbf{V}^{(l)T} \hat{A}^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U}^k = \mathbf{V}^T \dot{A}^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U}, \qquad k, l = 1, \dots, N$$

for any

$$\mathbf{U} = [U_1, U_2, \dots, U_{N(r-1)-1}, U_{N(r-1)}]^T,$$
$$\mathbf{V}^T = [V_1, V_2, \dots, V_{N(r-1)-1}, V_{N(r-1)}].$$

We give an example of such matrix to assist with understanding of the above.

For example: we assume e = 1, r = 3, N = 3, then $\dot{A}^{(k,l)}$ is a 6×6 matrix. Writing $\hat{a}_{ij} = \hat{a}_{ij}^{(k,l)}$, the form of the matrix $\dot{A}^{(k,l)}$ is shown in Table 2.2.

À	(1,1) =	=					1	4 ^{(1,2}) =					1	$\dot{4}^{(1,3)}$	=					
ſ	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	\hat{a}_{13}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	\hat{a}_{13}	0		\hat{a}_{13}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12} -	
	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	\hat{a}_{23}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	\hat{a}_{23}	0		\hat{a}_{23}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	
	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	\hat{a}_{33}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	\hat{a}_{33}	0		\hat{a}_{33}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
À((2,1) =	=				_	1	4 ^{(2,2}) 🛫				_		4 ^(2,3) :					_	-
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	\hat{a}_{13}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	\hat{a}_{13}	0		\hat{a}_{13}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	
	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	\hat{a}_{23}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	\hat{a}_{23}	0		\hat{a}_{23}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	
	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	\hat{a}_{33}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	\hat{a}_{33}	0		\hat{a}_{33}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	
L	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
À ⁽	(3,1) =	=				-	1	4 ^(3,2)) =				_		4 ^(3,3) =	=				_	
	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	\hat{a}_{33}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	\hat{a}_{33}	0		\hat{a}_{33}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{31}	\hat{a}_{32}	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	\hat{a}_{13}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	\hat{a}_{13}	0		\hat{a}_{13}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{11}	\hat{a}_{12}	
Ĺ	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	\hat{a}_{23}	0	0	0		0	0	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	\hat{a}_{23}	0		\hat{a}_{23}	0	0	0	\hat{a}_{21}	\hat{a}_{22}	

Table 2.2: Case of e = 1, r = 3 and N = 3.

30

Reconsidering the right-hand side of the Galerkin equation (2.3.1), we have

$$\langle f, v_h \rangle = \sum_{l=1}^{N} [V_{l,1}, V_{l,2}, \dots, V_{l,r}] \mathbf{F}^{(l)}$$

$$= \sum_{l=1}^{N} [V_{r(l-1)-(l-2)}, V_{r(l-1)-(l-3)}, \dots, V_{l(r-1)+1}] \hat{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)},$$

where

$$\hat{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)} = M_l \, \mathbf{F}^{(l)}.$$

Let $\dot{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)}$ be the unique vector in $\mathbb{R}^{N(r-1)}$ such that

$$\langle f, v_h \rangle = \sum_{l=1}^{N} \mathbf{V}^{(l)^T} \hat{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)} = \mathbf{V}^T \sum_{l=1}^{N} \dot{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)}$$

for

$$\mathbf{V}^T = [V_1, V_2, \dots, V_{N(r-1)-1}, V_{N(r-1)}].$$

Therefore, the Galerkin equation is

$$\mathbf{V}^T \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{l=1}^N \dot{A}^{(k,l)} \mathbf{U} = \mathbf{V}^T \sum_{l=1}^N \dot{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)} \qquad \text{ for all } \mathbf{V} \in \mathbb{R}^{N(r-1)},$$

or equivalently

$$A\mathbf{U}=\mathbf{F},$$

where

$$A = \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \dot{A}^{(k,l)}$$

is a matrix in $\mathbb{R}^{N(r-1)\times N(r-1)},$ and

$$\mathbf{F} = \sum_{l=1}^{N} \dot{\mathbf{F}}^{(l)}$$

is a vector in $\mathbb{R}^{N(r-1)}$.

2.4 Error Estimates of the Galerkin Method

It follows from Theorem 2.1.7 that the single layer operator $A : H^{-1/2}(\Gamma) \rightarrow H^{1/2}(\Gamma)$ is invertible. A well known argument shows that the Galerkin method achieves optimal rates of convergence in the energy space $H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$.

Theorem (Céa's Lemma) 2.4.1 Let a be the bilinear form (2.1.24), and let $f \in H^{1/2}(\Gamma)$. Then the Galerkin equation (2.3.1) has a unique solution $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$, and

$$\|u_h - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le C \inf_{v_h \in S_h^{r,e}} \|v_h - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}.$$
(2.4.1)

If $u \in H^r(\Gamma)$, then

$$\|u_h - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}.$$
(2.4.2)

Proof. We obtain $a(u_h - u, u_h - v_h) = 0$ by the Galerkin equation, then from a being $H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$ -elliptic,

$$C \|u_{h} - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^{2} \leq a(u_{h} - u, u_{h} - u)$$

= $a(u_{h} - u, v_{h} - u) + a(u_{h} - u, u_{h} - v_{h}) \quad \forall v_{h} \in S_{h}^{r,e}$
= $a(u_{h} - u, v_{h} - u)$
 $\leq C \|u_{h} - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \|v_{h} - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}, \quad \text{by Theorem 2.1.5}$

and cancelling $||u_h - u||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}$ on both sides, we obtain

$$\|u_h - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le C \|v_h - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \qquad \forall v_h \in S_h^{r,e},$$

hence

$$||u_h - u||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le C \inf_{v_h \in S_h^{r,e}(\Gamma)} ||v_h - u||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)},$$

which is (2.4.1). Moreover, by the approximation property in Theorem 2.2.1,

$$\|u_h - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)} \qquad \text{for } u \in H^r(\Gamma).$$
(2.4.3)

Furthermore, if the error is measured in a more negative norm then the order of convergence of the Galerkin method can be even better than we obtain in (2.4.2). The best result in the $H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)$ norm is in following theorem. This super-convergence property of the boundary integral equation was first obtained in [23].

Theorem 2.4.2 Let A be the single layer operator given by (2.1.9), and assume $u \in H^r(\Gamma)$. Then the Galerkin method with boundary element spaces $S_h^{r,e}$ has the following super-convergence property:

$$\|u_h - u\|_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{2r+1} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}.$$
(2.4.4)

Proof. The result will be obtained by a duality argument known as "Nitsche's trick".

Let $\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)$ and let $v \in H^r(\Gamma)$ be the unique solution of

$$Av = \phi$$
.

We have, from Theorem 2.1.7,

$$\|v\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)} \le C \|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}.$$
(2.4.5)

By the dual definition of $||u_h - u||_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)}$, (see (2.2.7)) and because

$$\begin{aligned} a(u_h - u, v_h) &= a(u_h, v_h) - a(u, v_h) \\ &= \langle f, v_h \rangle - \langle f, v_h \rangle = 0 \qquad \text{for all } v_h \in S_h^{r, e} \end{aligned}$$

we obtain

$$\begin{aligned} \|u_{h} - u\|_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} &= \sup_{\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} \frac{|\langle u_{h} - u, \phi \rangle_{0}|}{\|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}} \\ &= \sup_{\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} \frac{a(u_{h} - u, v)}{\|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}} \\ &= \sup_{\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} \frac{a(u_{h} - u, v - v_{h})}{\|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}} \\ &\leq \|u_{h} - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \sup_{\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} \frac{\|v - v_{h}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}}{\|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}}, \qquad \text{by Theorem 2.1.5.} \end{aligned}$$

From the approximation property (2.2.9) and the error bound (2.4.2), we obtain

$$\|u_{h} - u\|_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)} \sup_{\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} \frac{Ch^{r+1/2} \|v\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)}}{\|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}},$$
(2.4.6)

and so by (2.4.5),

$$||u_h - u||_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{2r+1} ||u||_{H^r(\Gamma)}, \qquad u \in H^r(\Gamma).$$

Corollary 2.4.1 If the mesh is quasi-uniform, then

$$\|u_h - u\|_{L^2(\Gamma)} \le Ch^r \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}.$$
(2.4.7)

Proof. If $v_h \in S_h^{r,e}(\Gamma)$, then by the inverse property (Theorem 2.2.1 (ii)) we have

$$\begin{aligned} \|u_{h} - u\|_{L^{2}(\Gamma)} &\leq \|u_{h} - v_{h}\|_{L^{2}(\Gamma)} + \|v_{h} - u\|_{L^{2}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq Ch^{-1/2} \|u_{h} - v_{h}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} + \|v_{h} - u\|_{L^{2}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq Ch^{-1/2} (\|u_{h} - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} + \|u - v_{h}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}) + \|v_{h} - u\|_{L^{2}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq Ch^{r} \|u\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)} + C(h^{-1/2} \|v_{h} - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} + \|v_{h} - u\|_{L^{2}(\Gamma)}). \end{aligned}$$

By choosing $v_h = P_h u$ where P_h is the approximation operator of Theorem 2.2.1 (i), we have

$$h^{-1/2} \|v_h - u\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} + \|v_h - u\|_{L^2(\Gamma)} \le Ch^r \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}$$
(2.4.8)

giving the desired bound.

Chapter 3

PERTURBATION OF THE BILINEAR FORM

3.1 The Perturbed Bilinear Form a_h

We consider the Galerkin boundary element method (2.3.1) for a smooth curved boundary Γ , but now use an approximate parametric representation of Γ .

As we know, the boundary Γ is a union of the arcs $\Delta_k, k = 1, \ldots, N$. A mapping

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}:[0,1]\to \triangle_{k}$$

is defined by (2.2.4), for each boundary element Δ_k .

In the implementation of the Galerkin method, it is necessary to compute the stiffness matrix $A^{(k,l)}$ for $\Delta_k \times \Delta_l$, whose entries are

$$a_{ij}^{(k,l)} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(\frac{b}{|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}\right) P_i(s) P_j(t) \, ds \, dt, \qquad i, j = 1, \dots, r,$$
(3.1.1)

see (2.3.4) and (2.3.5).

In a practical implementation of such a method, it will usually be convenient to approximate any curved boundaries using, for instance, some kind of piecewise polynomial or piecewise rational function. Thus, we try to replace the exact stiffness matrix $A^{(k,l)}$ by a perturbed matrix $\tilde{A}^{(k,l)} = \left[\tilde{a}_{ij}^{(k,l)}\right]_{1 \le i,j \le r}$ with entries

$$\tilde{a}_{ij}^{(k,l)} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(\frac{b}{|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t)|}\right) P_i(s) P_j(t) \, ds \, dt, \qquad i, j = 1, \dots, r,$$
(3.1.2)

where $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \approx \mathbf{m}_k(s)$ for $0 \leq s \leq 1$ and $1 \leq k \leq N$.

The arc Δ_k is approximated by an arc $\tilde{\Delta}_k$, which is formed by a smooth map

$$\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k: [0,1] \to \tilde{\Delta}_k, \qquad k = 1, \dots, N.$$
 (3.1.3)

Our purpose is to make the approximation $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k \approx \mathbf{m}_k$ sufficiently accurate so that the convergence rates presented in Theorem 2.4.1 and Theorem 2.4.2 are maintained. This approximation of \mathbf{m}_k affects the Galerkin equation via the entries of the stiffness matrix on $\Delta_k \times \Delta_l$, and the components of the load vector on Δ_l .

On the left-hand side of the integral equation (2.1.22) or (2.1.23), the weakly singular kernel K is approximated by the kernel K_h , defined as follows:

$$K_h(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{y}) = K(\tilde{\mathbf{x}} - \tilde{\mathbf{y}}),$$

where

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{m}_l(t) \in \Delta_l, \qquad \quad \tilde{\mathbf{x}} = \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t) \in \tilde{\Delta}_l, \qquad (3.1.4)$$

$$\mathbf{y} = \mathbf{m}_k(s) \in \Delta_k, \qquad \quad \tilde{\mathbf{y}} = \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \in \dot{\Delta}_k.$$
 (3.1.5)

For $0 \leq s, t \leq 1$ and $u, v \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$, a perturbed bilinear form a_h is defined as (cf. (2.1.24))

$$a_{h}(u, v) = \int_{\Gamma} \int_{\Gamma} K_{h}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}) u(\mathbf{y}) v(\mathbf{x}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$
$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} K[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)] u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] v[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] \left| \mathbf{m}_{l}'(t) \right| \left| \mathbf{m}_{k}'(s) \right| ds dt.$$
(3.1.6)

Hence the perturbed weak formulation of the integral equation (2.1.3) is, (cf. (2.1.25))

$$a_h(u,v) = \langle f_h, v \rangle \qquad \forall v \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma).$$
 (3.1.7)

We assume that $f_h \approx f$, that is, f_h is a suitable approximation to f. The precise definition of f_h will be given later.

The trial space $S_h^{r,e}$ in the perturbed Galerkin method is the same as before, in the classical Galerkin method. Thus, the perturbed form of the Galerkin equation (2.3.1), for $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$, is given by the expression:

$$a_h(u_h, v_h) = \langle f_h, v_h \rangle \qquad \quad \forall v_h \in S_h^{r, e}. \tag{3.1.8}$$

The left-hand side of the perturbed Galerkin equation is given explicitly by

$$a_{h}(u_{h}, v_{h}) = \int_{\Gamma} \int_{\Gamma} K_{h}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}) u_{h}(\mathbf{y}) v_{h}(\mathbf{x}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$
$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} K\left[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)\right] u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] v_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] \left|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)\right| \, ds \, dt,$$
(3.1.9)

and from (2.3.2) and (2.3.3),

$$u_h[\mathbf{m}_k(s)] = \sum_{i=1}^r U_{k,i} \frac{P_i(s)}{|\mathbf{m}'_k(s)|}, \qquad k = 1, \dots, N, \qquad (3.1.10)$$

$$v_h[\mathbf{m}_l(t)] = \sum_{j=1}^r V_{l,j} \frac{P_j(t)}{|\mathbf{m}_l'(t)|}, \qquad l = 1, \dots, N \qquad (3.1.11)$$

for $0 \le s \le 1$, $0 \le t \le 1$ and i, j = 1, ..., r. Substituting the expansions of u_h and v_h in (3.1.10) and (3.1.11), respectively, into (3.1.9), we have, in the two dimensional case,

$$a_h(u_h, v_h) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{l=1}^N \sum_{i=1}^r \sum_{j=1}^r U_{k,i} V_{l,j} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(\frac{b}{|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t)|}\right) P_i(s) P_j(t) \, ds \, dt,$$

which gives the formula (3.1.2) for the entries of the perturbed element stiffness matrix $\tilde{A}^{(k,l)}$.

3.2 An Estimate for $a_h - a$

We shall consider approximate local parametric representations of Γ satisfying the following conditions.

Definition 3.2.1 The approximation $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \approx \mathbf{m}_k(s)$ is accurate to order $p \geq 2$, if

1. For $0 \le s \le 1$ and $0 \le j \le 2$,

$$\left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{(j)}(s)\right| \le Ch_{k}^{p} \le Ch^{p},\tag{3.2.1}$$

where C is independent of s, k, and h.

2. The endpoints of $\tilde{\bigtriangleup}_k$ and \bigtriangleup_k coincide:

$$\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(0) = \mathbf{m}_k(0) = \mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1}),$$
$$\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(1) = \mathbf{m}_k(1) = \mathbf{F}(\tau_k).$$

Lemma 3.2.1 If $k = 1, \ldots, N$ and $0 \leq s \leq 1$, then

$$\left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s)\right| = O\left(h^{j}\right) \qquad for \ 0 \le j. \tag{3.2.2}$$

Proof. Recalling that $\mathbf{m}_k(s)$ is defined in (2.2.4) by

$$\mathbf{m}_k(s) = \mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1} + sh_k),$$

we have, by the chain rule,

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s) = h_{k}^{j} \mathbf{F}^{(j)}(\tau_{k-1} + sh_{k}) = O(h^{j}).$$
(3.2.3)

Lemma 3.2.2 If $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k$ is an $O(h^p)$ approximation to \mathbf{m}_k , then

$$\left|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{(j)}(s)\right| = O\left(h^{j}\right) \tag{3.2.4}$$

for $0 \le s \le 1$ and $0 \le j \le 2$.

Proof. By the triangle inequality and Definition 3.2.1,

$$\left|\left|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{(j)}(s)\right| - \left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s)\right|\right| \leq \left|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{(j)}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s)\right| \leq Ch^{p},$$

hence, by Lemma 3.2.1,

$$\begin{aligned} \left| \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{(j)}(s) \right| &\leq Ch^{p} + \left| \mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s) \right| \\ &= O\left(h^{j}\right). \end{aligned}$$

г		

For polynomial interpolation, we have the following result from [32]:

Theorem 3.2.1 If Γ is C^{p+q} and if $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s)$ is the unique polynomial of order p that interpolates $\mathbf{m}_k(s)$ at s_1, \ldots, s_p , for $0 = s_1 < s_2 < \cdots < s_p = 1$, then

$$\left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{(j)}(s)\right| \le Ch^{p} \tag{3.2.5}$$

for $0 \le j \le q \le p$ and $0 \le s \le 1$.

Proof. The error term in the polynomial interpolant can be written as

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) = \mathbf{m}_{k}\left[s_{1}, s_{2}, \dots, s_{p}, s\right] \prod_{n=1}^{p} (s - s_{n}),$$

where $\mathbf{m}_k[s_1, s_2, \ldots, s_p, s]$ denotes the vector divided difference which we can define componentwise. Thus, by Lemma 3.2.1, and for $j = 0, 1, \ldots, q$,

$$\begin{aligned} \left| \mathbf{m}_{k}^{(j)}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{(j)}(s) \right| \\ &= \left| \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial s} \right)^{(j)} \left[\mathbf{m}_{k} \left[s_{1}, s_{2}, \dots, s_{p}, s \right] \prod_{n=1}^{p} (s - s_{n}) \right] \right| \\ &= \left| \sum_{i=0}^{j} \left(\begin{array}{c} j \\ i \end{array} \right) \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial s} \right)^{(j-i)} \mathbf{m}_{k} \left[s_{1}, s_{2}, \dots, s_{p}, s \right] \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial s} \right)^{(i)} \prod_{n=1}^{p} (s - s_{n}) \right| \\ &\leq C \sum_{i=0}^{j} \left(\begin{array}{c} j \\ i \end{array} \right) \left| \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial s} \right)^{(j-i)} \mathbf{m}_{k} \left[s_{1}, s_{2}, \dots, s_{p}, s \right] \right| \\ &\leq C \sum_{i=0}^{j} \left(\begin{array}{c} j \\ i \end{array} \right) \frac{(j-i)!}{(p+j-i)!} \max_{0 \le t \le 1} \left| \mathbf{m}_{k}^{(p+j-i)}(t) \right| \\ &\leq C \sum_{i=0}^{j} h^{(p+j-i)} \\ &\leq C h^{p}. \end{aligned}$$

We give two simple examples that satisfy the Definition 3.2.1.

Example 1: The simplest scheme is linear interpolation, for which p = 2. In this case

$$\begin{split} \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) &= (1-s) \, \mathbf{m}_k(0) + s \, \mathbf{m}_k(1) \\ &= (1-s) \, \mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1}) + s \, \mathbf{F}(\tau_k) \qquad \text{for } s \in [0,1]. \end{split}$$

Example 2: To achieve order p = 3, we can use piecewise quadratic interpolation

$$\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) = (1-s)\,\mathbf{m}_k(0) + s\,\mathbf{m}_k(1) + \alpha\,s\,(1-s), \qquad 0 \le s \le 1,$$

choosing α so that

$$\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k\left(\frac{1}{2}\right) = \mathbf{m}_k\left(\frac{1}{2}\right).$$

(Thus, in the notation of Theorem 3.2.1, we have $s_1 = 0, s_2 = \frac{1}{2}, s_3 = 1.$)

Since

$$\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k\left(\frac{1}{2}\right) = \frac{1}{2}\,\mathbf{m}_k(0) + \frac{1}{2}\,\mathbf{m}_k(1) + \frac{1}{4}\,\alpha,$$

we see that

$$\begin{aligned} \alpha &= -2\mathbf{m}_{k}(0) + 4\mathbf{m}_{k}\left(\frac{1}{2}\right) - 2\mathbf{m}_{k}(1) \\ &= -2\left[\mathbf{F}\left(\tau_{k-1}\right) - 2\mathbf{F}\left(\tau_{k-1} + \frac{1}{2}h_{k}\right) + \mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1} + h_{k})\right] \\ &= -2\mathbf{F}''\left(\tau_{k-1} + \frac{1}{2}h_{k}\right)\left(\frac{h_{k}}{2}\right)^{2} + O\left(h_{k}^{4}\right). \end{aligned}$$

Thus, we can interpret the term $\alpha s(1-s)$ as an $O(h_k^2)$ correction to the linear interpolant.

In what follows we will often use the Taylor expansion with the Integral Remainder,

$$f(s) = \sum_{j=0}^{p-1} \frac{f^{(j)}(t)}{j!} (s-t)^j + \frac{1}{p!} \int_t^s f^{(p)}(\xi) (s-\xi)^{p-1} d\xi, \qquad t < \xi < s.$$

Let $\xi = t + \eta (s - t), 0 \le \eta \le 1$, then

$$f(s) = \sum_{j=0}^{p-1} \frac{f^{(j)}(t)}{j!} (s-t)^j + \frac{1}{p!} (s-t)^p \int_0^1 f^{(p)}[t+\eta(s-t)](1-\eta)^{p-1} d\eta. \quad (3.2.6)$$

Next, we estimate the error between the bilinear form $a(u_h, v_h)$ in the Galerkin equation (2.3.1) and the bilinear form $a_h(u_h, v_h)$ in the perturbed Galerkin equation (3.1.8). That is, we estimate the difference

$$a(u_h,v_h)-a_h(u_h,v_h)$$

$$= \int_{\Gamma} \int_{\Gamma} \left[K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) - K_{h}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}) \right] u_{h}(\mathbf{y}) v_{h}(\mathbf{x}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$
$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left(K \left[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s) \right] - K \left[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) \right] \right)$$
$$u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] v_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] \left| \mathbf{m}_{l}'(t) \right| \left| \mathbf{m}_{k}'(s) \right| ds dt.$$
(3.2.7)

In bounding this error, the crucial step is to investigate the error between the logarithmic kernel and perturbed logarithmic kernel.

Lemma 3.2.3 For $\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b} \in \mathbb{R}^2$ with $\mathbf{b} \neq 0$, if

$$\frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} < \frac{1}{2},$$

then

$$\log \frac{|\mathbf{a}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} \le 2 \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|}.$$
 (3.2.8)

Proof. By the triangle inequality

$$|\mathbf{b}| - |\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}| \le |\mathbf{a}| \le |\mathbf{b}| + |\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|,$$

so

$$1 - \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} \le \frac{|\mathbf{a}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} \le 1 + \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|},$$

and hence

$$\begin{aligned} \left| \log \frac{|\mathbf{a}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} \right| &= \left| \int_{1}^{|\mathbf{a}|/|\mathbf{b}|} \frac{dt}{t} \right| \\ &\leq \frac{1}{1 - \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|}} \left| \int_{1}^{|\mathbf{a}|/|\mathbf{b}|} dt \right| = \frac{\left| \frac{|\mathbf{a}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} - 1 \right|}{1 - \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|}} \\ &\leq \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|/|\mathbf{b}|}{1 - |\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|/|\mathbf{b}|} \leq 2 \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|}. \end{aligned}$$

_	-	
_		

Lemma 3.2.4 If $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k$ is an $O(h^p)$ order of approximation to \mathbf{m}_k , then

$$|K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) - K_h(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y})| \le Ch^{p-1} \qquad \text{for } \mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y} \in \Gamma.$$
(3.2.9)

Proof. With the notation of (3.1.4) and (3.1.5), let

$$A = \left| \log \frac{|\tilde{\mathbf{x}} - \tilde{\mathbf{y}}|}{|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}|} \right|,$$

and consider separately three cases.

Case 1: k = l, so that **x** and **y** are in the same boundary element Δ_k . By Lemma 3.2.3 with $\mathbf{a} = \tilde{\mathbf{x}} - \tilde{\mathbf{y}}$ and $\mathbf{b} = \mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}$,

$$A = \left| \log \frac{|\mathbf{a}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} \right| \le C \frac{|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|}{|\mathbf{b}|}.$$
 (3.2.10)

By applying the Taylor's Theorem (3.2.6),

$$\begin{aligned} |\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}| &= \left| [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(t)] - [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(t)] \right| \\ &= \left| (s - t) \int_{0}^{1} \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}'[t + \xi(s - t)] d\xi - (s - t) \int_{0}^{1} \mathbf{m}_{k}'[t + \xi(s - t)] d\xi \right| \\ &= \left| (s - t) \int_{0}^{1} [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}'[t + \xi(s - t)] - \mathbf{m}_{k}'[t + \xi(s - t)]] d\xi \right|, \end{aligned}$$

so according to Definition 3.2.1,

$$|\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}| \le Ch_k^p |s - t|,$$

and since $\mathbf{m}_k(s) = \mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1} + sh_k)$, the assumption (2.2.2) implies that

$$\begin{aligned} |\mathbf{b}| &= |\mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1} + sh_k) - \mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1} + th_k)| \\ &= |[\mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1}) + \mathbf{F}'(\tau_{k-1})sh_k + O((s-t)^2h_k^2)]| \\ &- [\mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1}) + \mathbf{F}'(\tau_{k-1})th_k + O((s-t)^2h_k^2)]| \\ &= |\mathbf{F}'(\tau_{k-1})(s-t)h_k| [1 + O(|s-t|h_k)] \\ &\geq C|s-t|h_k. \end{aligned}$$

Hence,

$$A \le C \frac{|s-t| h_k^p}{|s-t| h_k} \le C h^{p-1}.$$

Case 2: l = k + 1, so that x and y are in neighbouring boundary elements.

Thus, by condition 2. in Definition 3.2.1,

$$\begin{aligned} |\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}| &= |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k+1}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s) + \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t)| \\ &= |[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(1)] - [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k+1}(t) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k+1}(0)] \\ &- [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(1)] + [\mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(0)]| \\ &\leq \left| (s - 1) \int_{0}^{1} [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}'[1 + \xi(s - 1)] - \mathbf{m}_{k}'[1 + \xi(s - 1)]] d\xi \right| \\ &+ \left| t \int_{0}^{1} [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k+1}'(t\eta) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}'(t\eta)] d\eta \right| \\ &\leq C h^{p}(1 - s) + C h^{p}t \\ &\leq C h_{k}^{p}(1 - s + t), \end{aligned}$$

 $\quad \text{and} \quad$

$$\begin{aligned} |\mathbf{b}| &= |\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t)| \\ &= \left| \int_{\tau_{k} - (1-s)h_{k}}^{\tau_{k} + th_{k+1}} \mathbf{F}'(\tau) d\tau \right| \\ &= \left| \int_{\tau_{k} - (1-s)h_{k}}^{\tau_{k} + th_{k+1}} [\mathbf{F}'(\tau_{k}) + O(h)] d\tau \right| \\ &\geq C [th_{k+1} + (1-s)h_{k}] \\ &\geq C h_{k}(1-s+t). \end{aligned}$$
(3.2.11)

We therefore obtain,

$$A \le C h^{p-1}.$$

The next case is a general one.

Case 3: When x and y are in the different boundary elements with $|k - l| \ge 2$, that means $|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)| > Ch$, so

$$A = \left| \log \frac{|\mathbf{a}|}{|\mathbf{b}|} \right|$$

$$\leq C \frac{|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s)| + |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}{h} \leq C h^{p-1}$$

The Lemma is now proved.

The error estimate $|a - a_h|$ follows from Lemma 3.2.4.

Theorem 3.2.2 If the approximation $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \approx \mathbf{m}_k(s)$ is accurate to order p, then

$$|a(u_h, v_h) - a_h(u_h, v_h)| \le Ch^{p-1} \|u_h\|_0 \|v_h\|_0 \qquad \forall u_h, v_h \in S_h^{r, e}.$$
(3.2.12)

Proof. From the expression (3.2.7) and Lemma 3.2.4, we have

$$\begin{aligned} &|a(u_h, v_h) - a_h(u_h, v_h)| \\ &\leq Ch^{p-1} \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{l=1}^N \int_{\Delta_k} \int_{\Delta_l} |u_h(\mathbf{y}) v_h(\mathbf{x})| \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} \\ &\leq Ch^{p-1} \sum_{k=1}^N \int_{\Delta_k} |u_h(\mathbf{y})| \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} \sum_{l=1}^N \int_{\Delta_l} |v_h(\mathbf{x})| \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} \\ &= Ch^{p-1} \int_{\Gamma} |u_h(\mathbf{y})| \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} \int_{\Gamma} |v_h(\mathbf{x})| \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} \\ &\leq Ch^{p-1} ||u_h||_0 \ ||v_h||_0. \end{aligned}$$

3.3 A Sharper Estimate of the Bilinear Form

It turns out that in a certain sense, the estimate (3.2.12) can be improved upon using a trick from Le Roux [32] and Nedelec [36].

We remark that our technical formulation of the boundary approximation differs from the one in [32] in the following sense. In [32], the approximate solution of the integral equation is defined on the approximate boundary and is then mapped onto the exact boundary. In the approach we use in this thesis, the approximate solution is thought of as being defined directly on the real boundary.

We shall estimate $a(u_h^*, v_h^*) - a_h(u_h, v_h)$ for a special choice of $u_h^* \approx u_h$ and $v_h^* \approx v_h$. In this way, we shall obtain a better bound than the one in Theorem 3.2.2.

Define a neighbourhood of Γ ,

$$N_{\delta} = \left\{ \mathbf{z} \in \mathbb{R}^2 : \operatorname{dist}\left(\mathbf{z}, \Gamma\right) < \delta \right\}.$$

Assuming Γ is C^{∞} and δ is sufficiently small, there exists for each $\mathbf{z} \in N_{\delta}$ a unique point $\Psi(\mathbf{z}) \in \Gamma$ satisfying

$$|\mathbf{z} - \Psi(\mathbf{z})| = \min_{\mathbf{y} \in \Gamma} |\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}|.$$

For each k, if the curve $\tilde{\Delta}_k$ is contained in N_{δ} , then Ψ determines a smooth diffeomorphism of $\tilde{\Delta}_k$ onto Δ_k , and given a point

$$\mathbf{y}=\mathbf{m}_k(s)\in \triangle_k,$$

we write

$$ilde{\mathbf{y}} = ilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \in ilde{ riangle}_k \qquad ext{and} \qquad extbf{y}^* = \Psi(ilde{\mathbf{y}}) = \mathbf{m}_k(s^*) \in riangle_k.$$

(Remember that, by assumption, Δ_k and $\tilde{\Delta}_k$ have the same end-points.)

In this way, we obtain a smooth bijection

$$g_k:[0,1]\to[0,1]$$

given by

$$g_k(s) = s^* \qquad \text{for } 0 \le s \le 1.$$

Moreover, the line $\tilde{\mathbf{y}} - \Psi(\tilde{\mathbf{y}})$ is orthogonal to the tangent to Γ at $\Psi(\tilde{\mathbf{y}})$, so

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*}) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)] = 0.$$

$$(3.3.1)$$

Lemma 3.3.1 The norm of the first derivative of \mathbf{m}_k satisfies the lower bound

$$|\mathbf{m}'_k(s)| \ge Ch_k \qquad \text{for } 0 \le s \le 1,$$

and if $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k \approx \mathbf{m}_k$ to order $p \geq 2$, then for h_k sufficiently small,

$$|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k'(s)| \ge Ch_k.$$

Proof. The lower bound for $|\mathbf{m}'_k|$ follows at once from (2.2.2) and (3.2.3). Next, by (3.2.1),

$$\begin{aligned} |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_{k}(s)| &= |\mathbf{m}'_{k}(s) + \tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s)| \\ &\geq |\mathbf{m}'_{k}(s)| - |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s)| \\ &\geq Ch_{k} - Ch_{k}^{2} \\ &\geq Ch_{k}. \end{aligned}$$

Lemma 3.3.2 If $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k$ is an $O(h^p)$ order of approximation to \mathbf{m}_k , for $s \in [0, 1]$, we have

$$s^* - s = O\left(h^{p-1}\right). \tag{3.3.2}$$

Moreover, if $t \in [0, 1]$ such that $t \neq s$, then

$$\frac{|s^* - t^*|}{|s - t|} = 1 + O(h^{p-1}).$$
(3.3.3)

Proof. Using Taylor approximation and Lemma 3.2.2,

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s^{*}) \cdot \left[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)\right] \\ &= \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s^{*}) \cdot \left[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s^{*})\right] + \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s^{*}) \cdot \left[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)\right] \\ &= O(h) \cdot O(h^{p}) + \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s^{*}) \cdot \left[(s^{*} - s) \int_{0}^{1} \tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_{k}\left[s + \eta(s^{*} - s)\right] d\eta \right] \\ &= O\left(h^{p+1}\right) + I_{h}(s, s^{*})\left(s^{*} - s\right), \end{split}$$

where $|I_h(s, s^*)| \ge Ch^2$, by Lemma 3.3.1. Since

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*}) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)] = 0,$$

we deduce that

$$s^* - s = \frac{O(h^{p+1})}{I_h(s, s^*)} = O(h^{p-1}).$$
(3.3.4)

Moreover, by the Mean Value Theorem, from $|s^* - t^*| = |g_k(s) - g_k(t)|$ we have

$$\frac{|s^* - t^*|}{|s - t|} = g'_k(\xi)$$

for some ξ between s and t. Let

$$\Phi(s,s^*) = \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s)]$$
(3.3.5)

so that (3.3.1) is

$$\Phi[s, g_k(s)] = 0,$$

giving

$$\frac{\partial \Phi}{\partial s} \left[s, g_k(s) \right] + \frac{\partial \Phi}{\partial s^*} \left[s, g_k(s) \right] g'_k(s) = 0,$$

and hence

$$g'_{k}(s) = -\frac{\partial \Phi/\partial s \left[s, g_{k}(s)\right]}{\partial \Phi/\partial s^{*} \left[s, g_{k}(s)\right]} \qquad \text{for } \frac{\partial \Phi}{\partial s^{*}} \left[s, g_{k}(s)\right] \neq 0.$$

From (3.3.5), we have

$$\begin{aligned} -\frac{\partial \Phi}{\partial s} \left[s, g_k(s) \right] &= \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \cdot \tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_k(s) \\ &= -\mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \cdot \left[\mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_k(s) \right] + \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \right|^2 \\ &= -\mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \cdot \left[\mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_k(s^*) \right] \\ &- \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \cdot \left[\mathbf{\tilde{m}}'_k(s^*) - \mathbf{\tilde{m}}'_k(s) \right] + \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \right|^2 \\ &= O\left(h \cdot h^p\right) + O(h) \cdot \left[(s^* - s) \int_0^1 \mathbf{\tilde{m}}''_k \left[s + \eta(s^* - s) \right] d\eta \right] + \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \right|^2 \\ &= O\left(h^{p+1}\right) + O(h^3) \left(s^* - s \right) + \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \right|^2 \\ &= \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \right|^2 \left[1 + O\left(h^{p-1}\right) + O(h) \left(s^* - s \right) \right] \\ &= \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \right|^2 \left[1 + O\left(h^{p-1}\right) + O(h \cdot h^{p-1}) \right] \end{aligned}$$
 by (3.3.4)
 &= \left| \mathbf{m}'_k(s^*) \right|^2 \left[1 + O\left(h^{p-1}\right) \right], \end{aligned}

and

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\partial \Phi}{\partial s^*} \left[s, g_k(s) \right] &= \mathbf{m}_k''(s^*) \cdot \left[\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \right] + \left| \mathbf{m}_k'(s^*) \right|^2 \\ &= \mathbf{m}_k''(s^*) \cdot \left[\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s^*) \right] \\ &+ \mathbf{m}_k''(s^*) \cdot \left[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s^*) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \right] + \left| \mathbf{m}_k'(s^*) \right|^2 \\ &= O\left(h^2 \cdot h^p \right) + O(h^3) \left(s^* - s \right) + \left| \mathbf{m}_k'(s^*) \right|^2 \\ &= \left| \mathbf{m}_k'(s^*) \right|^2 \left[1 + O\left(h^p\right) + O(h\right) \left(s^* - s \right) \right] \\ &= \left| \mathbf{m}_k'(s^*) \right|^2 \left[1 + O\left(h^p\right) + O(h^p) \right] \\ &= \left| \mathbf{m}_k'(s^*) \right|^2 \left[1 + O\left(h^p\right) + O(h^p) \right] \end{aligned}$$

hence

$$g'_{k}(s) = \frac{1 + O(h^{p-1})}{1 + O(h^{p})} = 1 + O(h^{p-1}).$$
(3.3.6)

Using Lemma 3.3.2, we can show

Theorem 3.3.1 If the approximation $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) \approx \mathbf{m}_k(s)$ is accurate to order $p \geq 2$, then, for $0 \leq s \leq 1$,

$$|\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s)| \le Ch^p, \tag{3.3.7}$$

$$\left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}^{'}(s)\right| \le Ch^{p},\tag{3.3.8}$$

where C is independent of s, s^*, k and h.

Proof. We use the result of Theorem 3.2.1 and Lemma 3.3.2,

$$|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)| \leq |\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)| + |\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)|$$

= $O(h(s^{*} - s)) + O(h^{p}) = O(h^{p}),$

and

$$\begin{aligned} \left| \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_{k}(s) \right| &\leq \left| \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s) \right| + \left| \mathbf{m}'_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_{k}(s) \right| \\ &= \left(h^{2}(s^{*} - s) \right) + O\left(h^{p} \right) = O\left(h^{p} \right). \end{aligned}$$

	1
_	_

We now define u_h^* by

$$u_{h}^{*}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] = u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] \frac{\left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s)\right|}{\left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s^{*})\right|} \frac{ds}{ds^{*}},$$
(3.3.9)

where $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ is the perturbed Galerkin approximation given by (3.1.8), and think about the error in the approximation $a_h(u_h, v_h) \approx a(u_h^*, v_h^*)$.

Let $\mathbf{y}^* = \mathbf{m}_k(s^*) \in \triangle_k$ and define the bilinear form by

$$\begin{aligned} a\left(u_{h}^{*}, v_{h}^{*}\right) \\ = \int_{\Gamma} \int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{x}^{*} - \mathbf{y}^{*}) \, u_{h}^{*}(\mathbf{y}^{*}) \, v_{h}^{*}(\mathbf{x}^{*}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}^{*}} \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}^{*}} \end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{split} &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} K\left[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})\right] u_{h}^{*}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] v_{h}^{*}[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})] \left| \mathbf{m}_{l}^{'}(t^{*}) \right| \left| \mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s^{*}) \right| ds^{*} dt^{*} \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} K\left[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})\right] u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] v_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] \\ &= \frac{\left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s)\right|}{\left|\mathbf{m}_{l}^{'}(t^{*})\right|} \frac{\left|\mathbf{m}_{l}^{'}(t)\right|}{\left|\mathbf{m}_{l}^{'}(t^{*})\right|} \frac{ds}{ds^{*}} \frac{dt}{dt^{*}} \left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s^{*})\right| \left|\mathbf{m}_{l}^{'}(t^{*})\right| ds^{*} dt^{*} \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} K\left[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})\right] u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] v_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] \left|\mathbf{m}_{l}^{'}(t)\right| \left|\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s)\right| ds dt. \end{split}$$

One therefore deduces

$$a (u_{h}^{*}, v_{h}^{*}) - a_{h}^{*}(u_{h}, v_{h})$$

$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} (K [\mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] - K [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)])$$

$$u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] v_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] |\mathbf{m}_{l}^{'}(t)| |\mathbf{m}_{k}^{'}(s)| ds dt. \qquad (3.3.10)$$

To be able to compare the bilinear form a and a_h , it is thus necessary to study the error between $K(\mathbf{x}^* - \mathbf{y}^*)$ and $K_h(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y})$.

Lemma 3.3.3 For h sufficiently small,

$$|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(t^{*})| \ge Ch_{k}|s - t|, \qquad (3.3.11)$$

and

$$|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t^{*})| \ge Ch_{k}(1 - s + t).$$
(3.3.12)

Proof. By Lemma 3.3.2, we have

$$|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(t^{*})| = \left| (s^{*} - t^{*}) \int_{0}^{1} \mathbf{m}_{k}'[t^{*} + \zeta(s^{*} - t^{*})] d\zeta \right| \\ \geq Ch_{k} |s^{*} - t^{*}|$$

$$= Ch_{k} |s-t| \frac{|s^{*}-t^{*}|}{|s-t|} \\ = Ch_{k} |s-t| + Ch^{p-1} |s-t| \\ \ge Ch_{k} |s-t|.$$

We rewrite $|\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t^*)|$ as $|\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_k(1) + \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(0) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t^*)|$, and use the same techniques as above to obtain

$$|\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t^*)| \ge Ch_k(1 - s + t).$$

In addition to (3.1.4) and (3.1.5), we now introduce the notation

$$\mathbf{x}^* = \mathbf{m}_l(t^*) \in \triangle_l$$
 and $\mathbf{y}^* = \mathbf{m}_k(s^*) \in \triangle_k$

Lemma 3.3.4 If $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k$ is an $O(h^p)$ order of approximation to \mathbf{m}_k with $p \geq 2$ and if (3.3.1) holds, then

$$|K(\mathbf{x}^* - \mathbf{y}^*) - K_h(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y})| \le Ch^p \qquad \text{for } \mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y} \in \Gamma.$$
(3.3.13)

Proof. Using Lemma 3.2.3 with

$$\mathbf{a} = \tilde{\mathbf{x}} - \tilde{\mathbf{y}} = \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s)$$
$$\mathbf{b} = \mathbf{x}^* - \mathbf{y}^* = \mathbf{m}_l(t^*) - \mathbf{m}_k(s^*),$$

we reduce (3.3.13) to

$$||\mathbf{a}|^2 - |\mathbf{b}|^2| \le Ch^p |\mathbf{b}|^2$$
 (3.3.14)

with

$$\left|\log\frac{|\mathbf{a}|^2}{|\mathbf{b}|^2}\right| \le 2\frac{||\mathbf{a}|^2 - |\mathbf{b}|^2|}{|\mathbf{b}|^2}.$$

One sees that

$$|\mathbf{a}|^{2} - |\mathbf{b}|^{2} = \mathbf{a} \cdot \mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b} \cdot \mathbf{b}$$

= $(\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}) \cdot (\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}) + \mathbf{b} \cdot (\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}) + (\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}) \cdot \mathbf{b}$
= $2(\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}) \cdot \mathbf{b} + |\mathbf{a} - \mathbf{b}|^{2}$
= $2I + II$,

where

$$I = ([\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t))] - [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})]) \cdot (\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})),$$

$$II = |[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t)] - [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})]|^{2}.$$

We consider I and II separately. Firstly we decompose I into two terms, i.e.,

$$I = (\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s^*)) \cdot (\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*))$$
$$- (\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)) \cdot (\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)) \cdot$$

Let W_p be the projection of the vector $[\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)]$ on the tangent line to Γ at the point $\mathbf{m}_k(s^*)$, then $W_p \cdot [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s^*)] = 0$, so we can rewrite the first term of I as

$$(\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s^*)) \cdot (\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*))$$

= $(\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s^*)) \cdot (\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*) - W_p).$

Since the curve Γ is smooth,

$$|\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*) - W_p| \le C |\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)|^2,$$

so by using the Cauchy-Schwarz inequality and Theorem 3.3.1, we then obtain for the first term of I,

$$|(\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s^*)) \cdot (\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*))|$$

$$\leq |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s^*)| |\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*) - W_p|$$

$$\leq Ch^p |\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)|^2 \cdot \mathbf{m}_k(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t)|^2.$$

Similarly,

$$|(\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_l(t) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)) \cdot (\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*))| \le Ch^p |\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)|^2.$$

Now, we consider the different cases for II.

Case i. If k = l. From Taylor's formula (3.2.6), we have

$$II = |[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(t)] - [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(t^{*})]|^{2} \\ = \left| (s-t) \int_{0}^{1} \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}'[t + \xi(s-t)] d\xi + (s^{*} - t^{*}) \int_{0}^{1} \mathbf{m}_{k}'[t^{*} + \xi^{*}(s^{*} - t^{*})] d\xi^{*} \right|^{2},$$

and by Lemma 3.3.2, Theorem 3.3.1 and (3.3.11) in Lemma 3.3.3,

$$II \leq |s-t|^{2} \left| \int_{0}^{1} \left(\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}'[t+\xi(s-t)] - \mathbf{m}_{k}'[t+\xi(s-t)] \right) d\xi \right|^{2}$$

$$\leq Ch_{k}^{2p} |s-t|^{2}$$

$$\leq Ch_{k}^{2p-2} |\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(t^{*})|^{2}$$

$$\leq Ch^{p} |\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})|^{2}$$

Case ii. If l = k + 1. Using similar techniques as in Case i, we obtain

$$II = |[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t)] - [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})]|^{2}$$

$$= |[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k+1}(t)] - [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t^{*})]|^{2}$$

$$= |[\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(1)] - [\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k+1}(t) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k+1}(0)]$$

$$- [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(1)] + [\mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(0)]|^{2}$$

$$\leq C h_{k}^{2p} (1 - s + t)^{2},$$

by (3.3.12) in Lemma 3.3.3,

$$II \leq Ch_k^{2p-2} |\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_{k+1}(t^*)|^2$$

$$\leq Ch^p |\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)|^2.$$

Case iii. If $|k - l| \ge 2$, then $|\mathbf{m}_k(s^*) - \mathbf{m}_l(t^*)| \ge Ch_k$,

$$II = |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t) - [\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})]|^{2}$$

$$\leq ||\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})| + |\mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*}) - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{l}(t)||^{2}$$

$$\leq Ch_{k}^{2p}$$

$$\leq Ch_{k}^{2p-2} |\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})|^{2}$$

$$\leq Ch^{p} |\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t^{*})|^{2}.$$

Hence, we finally deduce

$$\log \frac{|\tilde{\mathbf{x}} - \tilde{\mathbf{y}}|}{|\mathbf{x}^* - \mathbf{y}^*|} = O(h^p).$$

Compare the following estimate with the one in Theorem 3.2.2.

Theorem 3.3.2 If Γ is approximated to order $p \geq 2$, then we have the improved upper bound

$$|a(u_h^*, v_h^*) - a_h(u_h, v_h)| \le Ch^p \, \|u_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \, \|v_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \qquad \forall u_h, v_h \in S_h^{r,e}.$$
(3.3.15)

Proof. By (3.3.10) and Lemma 3.3.4,

$$\begin{aligned} &|a(u_h^*, v_h^*) - a_h(u_h, v_h)| \\ &\leq Ch^p \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{l=1}^N \int_{\triangle_k} \int_{\triangle_l} |u_h(\mathbf{y}) v_h(\mathbf{x})| \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} \ d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} \end{aligned}$$

$$\leq Ch^{p} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{\Delta_{k}} |u_{h}(\mathbf{y})| \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} \sum_{l=1}^{N} \int_{\Delta_{l}} |v_{h}(\mathbf{x})| \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}}$$

$$= Ch^{p} \int_{\Gamma} |u_{h}(\mathbf{y})| \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} \int_{\Gamma} |v_{h}(\mathbf{x})| \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{x}}$$

$$\leq Ch^{p} \, \|u_{h}\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} \, \|v_{h}\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)}.$$

There is a consequence which follows from above immediately,

Corollary 3.3.1 For $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$, then

$$|a(u_h^*, u_h^*) - a_h(u_h, u_h)| \le Ch^{p-1} \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2.$$
(3.3.16)

The proof is straightforward by applying the inverse property (2.2.10).

3.4 Other Types of Boundary Approximation

In Section 3.2, two examples of polynomial boundary interpolation were given, satisfying the conditions in Definition 3.2.1. We now give some other types of boundary approximation that also satisfy the conditions required for our theory.

Homogeneous Coordinates

In computer graphics, it is common to represent curves using homogeneous coordinates; see Farin [51, Chapter 15]. A boundary approximation using a piecewise polynomial representation in terms of homogeneous coordinates is equivalent, in Cartesian coordinates, to a piecewise rational approximation.

Indeed, if $\mathbf{F} : [0,1] \to \mathbb{R}^2$ is a parametric representation of Γ as in (2.2.1), then for any function $\Lambda : [0,1] \to \mathbb{R}$ with $|\Lambda(\tau)| \ge C > 0$ for $\tau \in [0,1]$, we can think of $\Theta(\tau) = [\Lambda(\tau)\mathbf{F}(\tau), \Lambda(\tau)]$ as homogeneous coordinates for $\mathbf{F}(\tau)$. If the components of $\Theta(\tau)$ are approximated by piecewise polynomials, then in effect we are approximating

$$\mathbf{F}(\tau) = \left(\frac{\mathbf{\Theta}_1(\tau)}{\Lambda(\tau)}, \frac{\mathbf{\Theta}_2(\tau)}{\Lambda(\tau)}, \frac{\mathbf{\Theta}_3(\tau)}{\Lambda(\tau)}\right)$$

by piecewise rational functions.

Note that with homogeneous coordinates, we can parameterise any conic section exactly using quadratic polynomials [51, Chapter 14].

Shape-Preserving Approximation

Gregory and Delbourgo [52] discussed the use of piecewise-rational interpolants

that preserve convexity and monotonicity. Their schemes are quadratic/quadratic, i.e., they use quadratics in the numerator and denominator, and depend on certain derivative parameters. An $O(h^4)$ convergence result can be obtained when accurate derivative values are available. Otherwise, $O(h^3)$ convergence can be obtained when derivative values are determined by local approximations.

Circular Arcs

We can achieve an $O(h^3)$ approximation of the boundary by making $\tilde{\Delta}_h$ in (3.1.3) the arc of the unique circle that passes through the points $\mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-1})$, $\mathbf{F}(\tau_{k-\frac{1}{2}})$ and $\mathbf{F}(\tau_k)$. (If these three points are collinear, then $\tilde{\Delta}_h$ will have an infinite radius, i.e., $\tilde{\Delta}_h$ will be a line segment.) With such an approximation we can easily make the Jacobian $|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}'_k(t)|, t \in [0, 1]$, constant, and can conveniently evaluate the unit normal.

Polar Coordinates

If the parametric representation of the boundary is given in polar form,

$$\Gamma: r = \rho(\theta),$$

then

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) = \rho(\theta)(\cos\theta,\sin\theta),$$

where $\theta = (1 - s)\theta_{k-1} + s\theta_k$, $s \in [0, 1]$, and the θ_k play the role of the τ_k , i.e., $0 = \theta_0 < \theta_1 < \cdots < \theta_N = 1$ and $h_k = \theta_k - \theta_{k-1}$. In this case, it is natural to seek $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s)$ in the form

$$\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) = \tilde{\rho}(\theta)(\cos\theta, \sin\theta).$$

To achieve $O(h^3)$ accuracy, we can take $\tilde{\rho}$ to be piecewise quadratic with

$$\begin{split} \tilde{\rho}(\theta) &= \rho(\theta) \text{ at } \theta_{k-1}, \frac{1}{2}(\theta_{k-1} + \theta_k), \theta_k. \text{ Thus,} \\ &|\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_k(s)| = |[\tilde{\rho}(\theta) - \rho(\theta)] \left(\cos \theta, \sin \theta\right)| \\ &= O\left(h^3\right), \end{split}$$

and also, since

$$\mathbf{m}'_k(s) = \left[\rho'(\theta)(\cos\theta,\sin\theta) + \rho(\theta)(-\sin\theta,\cos\theta)\right] \frac{d\theta}{ds},$$

where $d\theta/ds = h_k$, we see that

$$\begin{aligned} |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}'(s) - \mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| &= |[\tilde{\rho}'(\theta) - \rho'(\theta)](\cos\theta, \sin\theta)h_{k} + [\tilde{\rho}(\theta) - \rho(\theta)](-\sin\theta, \cos\theta)h_{k}| \\ &= O\left(h^{3}\right) \end{aligned}$$

Furthermore,

$$\mathbf{m}_{k}^{\prime\prime}(s) = \left[\rho^{\prime\prime}(\theta)(\cos\theta,\sin\theta) + 2\rho^{\prime}(\theta)(-\sin\theta,\cos\theta) + \rho(\theta)(-\cos\theta,-\sin\theta)\right]h_{k}^{2}$$

and so

$$\begin{split} |\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}''(s) - \mathbf{m}_{k}''(s)| &= \left| \left[\tilde{\rho}''(\theta) - \rho''(\theta) \right] (\cos \theta, \sin \theta) h_{k}^{2} + \left[\rho(\theta) - \tilde{\rho}(\theta) \right] (\cos \theta, \sin \theta) h_{k}^{2} \\ &+ 2 \left[\rho'(\theta) - \tilde{\rho}'(\theta) \right] (\sin \theta, -\cos \theta) h_{k}^{2} \\ &= O\left(h^{3}\right) \end{split}$$

Chapter 4

ERROR ESTIMATES

4.1 Stability Property

The convergence of $u_h \to u$ can be established if the perturbed Galerkin equation is stable in an appropriate sense. In fact, we will show (in Corollary 4.1.1) that $\|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \leq C \|f_h\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)}.$

Define linear operators R_h and R'_h by

$$R_h \phi[\mathbf{m}_k(s)] = \phi[\mathbf{m}_k(s^*)] \tag{4.1.1}$$

for any $\phi \in H^0(\Gamma)$ and

$$R'_h u[\mathbf{m}_k(s^*)] = u[\mathbf{m}_k(s)] \frac{|\mathbf{m}'_k(s)|}{|\mathbf{m}'_k(s^*)|} \frac{ds}{ds^*},$$

and let $u^* = R'_h u$. The notation is consistent with (3.3.9), i.e.

$$u_h^* = R_h' u_h, \tag{4.1.2}$$

and in fact R'_h is the transpose of R_h , because for any $\phi \in H^0(\Gamma)$,

$$\langle R'_{h}u, \phi \rangle = \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} R'_{h}u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] \phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] |\mathbf{m}'_{k}(s^{*})| ds^{*}$$

$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] \phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] |\mathbf{m}'_{k}(s)| ds$$

$$= \langle u, R_{h}\phi \rangle.$$

$$(4.1.3)$$

In the usual way, we extend R_h and R'_h to act on distributions when necessary.

Lemma 4.1.1 For $0 \le \alpha \le 1$, the operator R'_h satisfies the uniform bound,

$$\|R'_{h}u\|_{H^{-\alpha}(\Gamma)} \le C\|u\|_{H^{-\alpha}(\Gamma)}, \qquad u \in H^{-\alpha}(\Gamma).$$

$$(4.1.4)$$

Proof. We use the formula (cf. (2.2.5))

$$\|v\|_{H^{1}(\Gamma)}^{2} \equiv \|v\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)}^{2} + \|Dv\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)}^{2}$$

Recall that, see (2.2.4)

$$\mathbf{F}(\tau) = \mathbf{m}_k(s) \qquad \text{for } \tau = (1-s)\,\tau_{k-1} + s\,\tau_k,$$

and therefore,

$$\mathbf{F}(\tau^*) = \mathbf{m}_k(s^*)$$
 for $\tau^* = (1 - s^*) \tau_{k-1} + s^* \tau_k$,

so,

$$\frac{d\tau}{ds} = \tau_k - \tau_{k-1} = h_k, \qquad \qquad \frac{d\tau^*}{ds^*} = \tau_k - \tau_{k-1} = h_k.$$

By the definition of the $H^0(\Gamma)$ norm (see (2.2.5))

$$\begin{aligned} \|R_{h}\phi\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)}^{2} &= \int_{0}^{1} |R_{h}\phi\circ\mathbf{F}(\tau)|^{2} d\tau \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |R_{h}\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} h_{k} ds \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})]|^{2} h_{k} \frac{ds}{ds^{*}} ds^{*} \qquad \text{by (4.1.1)} \\ &\leq C \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})]|^{2} h_{k} ds^{*}, \end{aligned}$$

since $ds/ds^* = 1 + O(h^{p-1}) = O(1)$,

$$||R_h \phi||^2_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le C \int_0^1 |\phi \circ \mathbf{F}(\tau^*)|^2 d\tau^* = C ||\phi||^2_{H^0(\Gamma)},$$

hence

$$\|R_h\phi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le C \,\|\phi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}.\tag{4.1.5}$$
Moreover,

$$\begin{split} \|DR_{h}\phi\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)}^{2} &= \int_{0}^{1} \left|\frac{d}{d\tau}[R_{h}\phi\circ\mathbf{F}(\tau)]\right|^{2}d\tau \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N}\int_{0}^{1} \left|\frac{ds}{d\tau}\frac{d}{d\tau}R_{h}\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]\right|^{2}\frac{d\tau}{ds}ds \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N}\int_{0}^{1} \left|\frac{1}{h_{k}}\frac{d}{ds}R_{h}\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]\right|^{2}h_{k}ds \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N}\int_{0}^{1} \left|\frac{1}{h_{k}}\frac{ds^{*}}{ds}\frac{d}{ds^{*}}\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})]\right|^{2}h_{k}\frac{ds}{ds^{*}}ds^{*} \\ &\leq C\sum_{k=1}^{N}\int_{0}^{1} \left|\frac{1}{h_{k}}\frac{d}{ds^{*}}\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})]\right|^{2}h_{k}ds^{*} \\ &= C\sum_{k=1}^{N}\int_{0}^{1} \left|\frac{1}{h_{k}}\frac{d\tau^{*}}{ds^{*}}\frac{d}{d\tau^{*}}\phi[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})]\right|^{2}h_{k}ds^{*} \\ &= C\sum_{k=1}^{N}\int_{0}^{1} \left|\frac{1}{d\tau^{*}}[\phi\circ\mathbf{F}(\tau^{*})]\right|^{2}d\tau^{*} \\ &= C\|D\phi\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)}^{2}, \end{split}$$

 \mathbf{SO}

$$\begin{aligned} \|R_h\phi\|_{H^1(\Gamma)}^2 &= \|R_h\phi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}^2 + \|DR_h\phi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}^2 \\ &\leq C\left(\|\phi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}^2 + \|D\phi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}^2\right) \\ &= C\|\phi\|_{H^1(\Gamma)}^2, \end{aligned}$$

giving

$$||R_h\phi||_{H^1(\Gamma)} \le C \, ||\phi||_{H^1(\Gamma)}. \tag{4.1.6}$$

The estimates (4.1.5) and (4.1.6) show that the operator of R_h is bounded, uniformly in h, on $H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)$ for $\alpha = 0$ and $\alpha = 1$. Hence, by interpolation, see [6], we have

$$\|R_h\phi\|_{H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)} \le C \,\|\phi\|_{H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)}, \qquad 0 \le \alpha \le 1.$$

$$(4.1.7)$$

Finally, from the definition of the negative norm and from (4.1.3),

$$\begin{aligned} \|R'_{h}u\|_{H^{-\alpha}(\Gamma)} &= \sup_{\phi \in H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)} \frac{|\langle R'_{h}u, \phi \rangle|}{\|\phi\|_{H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)}} \\ &= \sup_{\phi \in H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)} \frac{|\langle u, R_{h}\phi \rangle|}{\|\phi\|_{H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)}} \\ &\leq C \sup_{R_{h}\phi \in H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)} \frac{|\langle u, R_{h}\phi \rangle|}{\|R_{h}\phi\|_{H^{\alpha}(\Gamma)}} \qquad \text{by (4.1.7)} \\ &= C \|u\|_{H^{-\alpha}(\Gamma)}. \end{aligned}$$

Recall from Theorem 2.1.5 that the original bilinear form a is $H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$ -elliptic, i.e., for an $\alpha_0 > 0$,

$$a(u, u) \ge \alpha_0 ||u||^2_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \quad \forall u \in H^{-1/2}(\Gamma).$$

Now we present a stability property of the perturbed boundary element Galerkin method.

Theorem 4.1.1 If Γ is approximated to order $p \ge 2$, then there exists an $h_0 > 0$ and a positive constant α such that

$$\|a_h(u_h, u_h) \ge lpha \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 \quad and \quad a_h(u_h, u_h) \ge lpha \|u_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2$$

for $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ and $h \leq h_0$.

Proof. From the inequality (3.3.16) and the $H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)$ -ellipticity of a,

$$\begin{aligned} a_h(u_h, u_h) &= a(u_h^*, u_h^*) - [a(u_h^*, u_h^*) - a_h(u_h, u_h)] \\ &\geq \alpha_0 \|u_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 - C_1 h_0^{p-1} \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 \\ &\geq C_2 \alpha_0 \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 - C_1 h_0^{p-1} \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 \\ &= \alpha \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2, \end{aligned}$$

where $\alpha = C_2 \alpha_0 - C_1 h_0^{p-1}$. Since $p \ge 2$, we can chose h_0 such that $\alpha > 0$. \Box

Corollary 4.1.1 The Galerkin method (3.1.8) is stable:

$$\|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le C \,\|f_h\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)}.\tag{4.1.8}$$

Proof.

$$\begin{aligned} \alpha \, \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 &\leq a_h(u_h, u_h) \\ &= \langle f_h, u_h \rangle \\ &\leq C \, \|f_h\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} \, \|u_h\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}, \end{aligned}$$

hence, the result follows on cancelling $||u_h||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}$.

4.2 Error Estimates of the Perturbed Galerkin Method

We are now able to establish the error estimates of the perturbed Galerkin method.

Lemma 4.2.1 The operator R'_h satisfies

$$\|u - R'_h u\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{p-1} \|u\|_{H^1(\Gamma)}, \qquad u \in H^1(\Gamma).$$
(4.2.1)

Proof. Recall that $u^* = R'_h u$. We have

$$\|u - u^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}^2 = \sum_{k=1}^N \int_0^1 |u[\mathbf{m}_k(s^*)] - u^*[\mathbf{m}_k(s^*)]|^2 h_k \, ds^*$$

$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \left| u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] - u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] \frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)|}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})|} \frac{ds}{ds^{*}} \right|^{2} h_{k} ds^{*}$$

$$\leq \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] - u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} h_{k} ds$$

$$+ \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| 1 - \frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)|}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})|} \frac{ds}{ds^{*}} \right|^{2} h_{k} ds.$$

The first term on the right satisfies

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s^{*})] - u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} h_{k} ds \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \left| \int_{s}^{s^{*}} |(u \circ \mathbf{m}_{k})'(t)| dt \right|^{2} h_{k} ds \\ &\leq \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |s^{*} - s| \left| \int_{s}^{s^{*}} |(u \circ \mathbf{m}_{k})'(t)|^{2} h_{k} dt \right| ds \\ &\leq C \sum_{k=1}^{N} h^{2(p-1)} \int_{0}^{1} |(u \circ \mathbf{m}_{k})'(t)|^{2} h_{k} dt \qquad \text{by (3.3.2)} \\ &\leq C h^{2(p-1)} ||u||_{H^{1}(\Gamma)}^{2}, \end{split}$$

and the second term satisfies

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| 1 - \frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)|}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})|} \frac{ds}{ds^{*}} \right|^{2} h_{k} \, ds \\ &\leq \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| 1 - \frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)|}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})|} + \frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)|}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})|} O\left(h^{p-1}\right) \right|^{2} h_{k} \, ds \\ &= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| \frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})| - |\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| + |\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| O\left(h^{p-1}\right)}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})|} \right|^{2} h_{k} \, ds \\ &\leq \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| \frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*}) - \mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| + |\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| O\left(h^{p-1}\right)}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s^{*})|} \right|^{2} h_{k} \, ds \\ &\leq C \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| \frac{O\left(h^{2}(s^{*} - s)\right) + O\left(h^{p}\right)}{h_{k}} \right|^{2} h_{k} \, ds \end{split}$$

$$= C \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| \frac{O(h^{p+1}) + O(h^{p})}{h_{k}} \right|^{2} h_{k} ds$$

$$\leq C \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} |u[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]|^{2} \left| \frac{O(h^{p+1}) + O(h^{p})}{h_{k}} \right|^{2} h_{k} ds$$

$$\leq C h^{2(p-1)} ||u||_{H^{0}(\Gamma)}^{2},$$

so

$$\|u - u^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le Ch^{p-1} \|u\|_{H^1(\Gamma)}.$$
(4.2.2)

Theorem 4.2.1 Suppose that u is the exact solution of the equation (2.1.25), and $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ is the perturbed Galerkin approximation satisfying (3.1.8). If Γ is approximated to order $p \ge 2$, then

$$\|u - u_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \le C \left(\|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + h^{p-1/2} \|u\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} + h^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)} \right),$$
(4.2.3)

where R_h is given by (4.1.1).

Proof. For all $v_h \in S_h^{r,e}$,

$$a_{h}(u_{h} - v_{h}, u_{h} - v_{h})$$

$$= a_{h}(u_{h}, u_{h} - v_{h}) - a_{h}(v_{h}, u_{h} - v_{h})$$

$$+ a(v_{h}^{*}, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}) - a(v_{h}^{*}, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*})$$

$$+ a(u, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}) - a(u, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*})$$

$$= \langle f_{h}, u_{h} - v_{h} \rangle - \langle f, R'_{h}(u_{h} - v_{h}) \rangle \quad \text{by (4.1.2)}$$

$$+ a(v_{h}^{*}, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}) - a(v_{h}^{*}, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*})$$

$$+ a(u, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}) - a(v_{h}^{*}, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*})$$

$$= \langle f_h, u_h - v_h \rangle - \langle R_h f, u_h - v_h \rangle \quad \text{by (4.1.3)} \\ + a(v_h^*, (u_h - v_h)^*) - a_h(v_h, u_h - v_h) \\ + a(u, (u_h - v_h)^*) - a(v_h^*, (u_h - v_h)^*).$$

If we apply Theorem 2.2.1, Theorem 3.3.2 and Lemma 4.1.1 to above, then

$$\begin{aligned} |a_{h}(u_{h} - v_{h}, u_{h} - v_{h})| &\leq |\langle f_{h}, u_{h} - v_{h} \rangle - \langle R_{h}f, u_{h} - v_{h} \rangle| \\ &+ |a(v_{h}^{*}, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}) - a_{h}(v_{h}, u_{h} - v_{h})| \\ &+ |a(u - v_{h}^{*}, (u_{h} - v_{h})^{*})| \\ &\leq |\langle f_{h} - R_{h}f, u_{h} - v_{h} \rangle| \\ &+ Ch^{p} \|v_{h}\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} \|u_{h} - v_{h}\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} \\ &+ C \|u - v_{h}^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \|(u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq C [\|f_{h} - R_{h}f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} \|(u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \\ &+ h^{p-1/2} \|v_{h}\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} \|(u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \\ &+ \|u - v_{h}^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \|(u_{h} - v_{h})^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}]. \end{aligned}$$

Recall that by Theorem 4.1.1,

$$\alpha \| (u_h - v_h)^* \|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)}^2 \le a_h (u_h - v_h, u_h - v_h), \qquad \alpha > 0,$$

so by cancellation

$$\|u_{h}^{*} - v_{h}^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \leq \frac{C}{\alpha} \left(\|f_{h} - R_{h}f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + h^{p-1/2} \|v_{h}\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} + \|u - v_{h}^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \right).$$

$$(4.2.4)$$

Let P_h be the operator of orthogonal projection of $L^2(\Gamma)$ in the subspace $S_h^{r,e}$, and choose $v_h = P_h u$, then

$$||v_h||_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le ||u||_{H^0(\Gamma)},$$

and

$$\begin{aligned} \|u - v_{h}^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} &\leq C \|(R_{h}')^{-1}u - v_{h}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq Ch^{r+1/2} \left(\sum_{k=1}^{N} \|(R_{h}')^{-1}u\|_{H^{r}(\Delta_{k})}^{2} \right)^{1/2} \\ &\leq Ch^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)}, \end{aligned}$$
(4.2.5)

so

$$\|u_{h}^{*} - v_{h}^{*}\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \leq C \left(\|f_{h} - R_{h}f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + h^{p-1/2} \|u\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} + h^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)} \right).$$

$$(4.2.6)$$

Finally, the error estimate is obtained as follows:

$$\begin{aligned} \|u - u_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} &\leq \|u - v_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} + \|u_h^* - v_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq C\left(\|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + h^{p-1/2} \|u\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} + h^{r+1/2} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}\right). \end{aligned}$$

In our numerical experiments, it will be more convenient to measure errors in the L^2 norm, for which the following bound holds.

Corollary 4.2.1 Suppose that u is the exact solution of the equation (2.1.25), and $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ is the perturbed Galerkin approximation satisfying (3.1.8). If Γ is approximated to order $p \ge 2$, and if the mesh is quasi-uniform then

$$\|u - u_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le C\left(h^{-1/2}\|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + h^{p-1}\|u\|_{H^1(\Gamma)} + h^r \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}\right), \quad (4.2.7)$$

where R_h is given by (4.1.1).

Proof. By triangle inequality and Lemma 4.2.1,

$$\begin{aligned} \|u - u_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} &\leq \|u_h - u_h^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} + \|u - u_h^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq Ch^{p-1} \|u_h\|_{H^1(\Gamma)} + \|u - u_h^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}, \end{aligned}$$

and from the inverse property in Theorem 2.2.1 and (4.2.6),

$$\begin{aligned} \|u - u_h^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} &\leq \|u - v_h^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} + \|u_h^* - v_h^*\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq Ch^r \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)} + Ch^{-1/2} \|u_h^* - v_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq C \left(h^{-1/2} \|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + h^{p-1} \|u\|_{H^1(\Gamma)} + h^r \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}\right), \end{aligned}$$

hence, the proof is completed.

The perturbed Galerkin solution also converges faster in a more negative norm, resulting in faster convergence of the potential. This is an example of a superconvergence property.

Theorem 4.2.2 Let A be the single layer operator given by (2.1.9), and suppose that the $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ is the perturbed Galerkin approximation to u, given by (3.1.8). If Γ is approximated to order $p \ge 2$, then

$$\|u - u_{h}^{*}\|_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} \leq Ch^{r+1/2} \|f_{h} - R_{h}f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + Ch^{r+p} \|u\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} + Ch^{2r+1} \|u\|_{H^{r}(\Gamma)}$$

$$+ Ch^{p} \|u\|_{H^{1}(\Gamma)} + \|f_{h} - R_{h}f\|_{H^{0}(\Gamma)},$$
 (4.2.8)

where R_h is given by (4.1.1).

Proof. The operator $A : H^r(\Gamma) \to H^{r+1}(\Gamma)$ has a bounded inverse, so for any $\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)$, there exists a unique $\psi \in H^r(\Gamma)$ satisfying

$$A\psi=\phi,$$

and we have

$$\|\psi\|_{H^r(\Gamma)} \le C \, \|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}$$

By definition of the negative norm,

$$\|u - u_h^*\|_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} = \sup_{\phi \in H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} \frac{|\langle u - u_h^*, \phi \rangle_0|}{\|\phi\|_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}}.$$
(4.2.9)

Let P_h be the orthogonal projection operator of $L^2(\Gamma)$ in $S_h^{r,e}$, and choose $\psi_h = P_h \psi$, then

$$\|\psi_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le \|\psi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \le \|\psi\|_{H^r(\Gamma)}$$
(4.2.10)

and by (4.2.5),

$$\begin{aligned} |\langle u - u_h^*, \phi \rangle_0| &= |\langle u - u_h^*, A\psi \rangle_0| \\ &= |a(u - u_h^*, \psi)| \\ &= |a(u - u_h^*, \psi - \psi_h^*) + a(u - u_h^*, \psi_h^*)| \\ &\leq ||u - u_h^*||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} ||\psi - \psi_h^*||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} + |a(u - u_h^*, \psi_h^*)| \\ &\leq ||u - u_h^*||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} Ch^{r+1/2} ||\psi||_{H^r(\Gamma)} + |a(u - u_h^*, \psi_h^*)| \\ &\leq ||u - u_h^*||_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} Ch^{r+1/2} ||\phi||_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} + |a(u - u_h^*, \psi_h^*)| \,, \end{aligned}$$

and by Theorem 3.3.2,

$$\begin{aligned} |a(u - u_{h}^{*}, \psi_{h}^{*})| &\leq |a_{h}(u_{h}, \psi_{h}) - a(u_{h}^{*}, \psi_{h}^{*})| + |a(u, \psi_{h}^{*}) - a_{h}(u_{h}, \psi_{h})| \\ &\leq Ch^{p} ||u_{h}||_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} ||\psi_{h}||_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} + \langle f, \psi_{h}^{*} \rangle - \langle f_{h}, \psi_{h} \rangle \\ &\leq Ch^{p} ||u||_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} ||\psi||_{H^{r}(\Gamma)} + \langle R_{h}f, \psi_{h} \rangle - \langle f_{h}, \psi_{h} \rangle \\ &\leq Ch^{p} ||u||_{H^{1}(\Gamma)} ||\phi||_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} + ||R_{h}f - f_{h}||_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} ||\psi_{h}||_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} \\ &\leq Ch^{p} ||u||_{H^{1}(\Gamma)} ||\phi||_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} + ||R_{h}f - f_{h}||_{H^{0}(\Gamma)} ||\phi||_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)}, \end{aligned}$$

hence, from Theorem 4.2.1, we obtain the error estimate in the $H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)$ norm,

$$\|u - u_h^*\|_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} \leq Ch^{r+1/2} \|u - u_h^*\|_{H^{-1/2}(\Gamma)} + Ch^p \|u\|_{H^1(\Gamma)} + \|R_h f - f_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}$$

$$\leq Ch^{r+1/2} \|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} + Ch^{r+p} \|u\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} + Ch^{2r+1} \|u\|_{H^r(\Gamma)} + Ch^p \|u\|_{H^1(\Gamma)} + \|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^0(\Gamma)}.$$

In the next result, we think of ϕ_h as a numerical approximation of ϕ . Note that evaluation of the single or double layer potential of u at a point in Ω^+ requires the calculation on an integral of the form $\langle \phi, u \rangle$, where ϕ involves the fundamental solution K.

Corollary 4.2.2 Suppose that u is the exact solution of the equation (2.1.25), and $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ is the perturbed Galerkin approximation satisfying (3.1.8). If Γ is approximated to order $p \ge 2$, then

$$|\langle u, \phi \rangle - \langle u_h, \phi_h \rangle| \le C ||u - u_h^*||_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} ||\phi||_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} + C ||\phi_h - R_h \phi||_{H^0(\Gamma)} ||u||_{H^0(\Gamma)},$$
(4.2.11)

where R_h is given by (4.1.1), ϕ is any function in $H^{r+1}(\Gamma)$, and ϕ_h is any function in $H^0(\Gamma)$.

Proof.

$$\begin{aligned} |\langle u, \phi \rangle - \langle u_h, \phi_h \rangle| &= |\langle u, \phi \rangle - \langle u_h^*, \phi \rangle + \langle u_h, R_h \phi \rangle - \langle u_h, \phi_h \rangle| \\ &\leq |\langle u - u_h^*, \phi \rangle| + |\langle u_h, R_h \phi - \phi_h \rangle| \\ &\leq C ||u - u_h^*||_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} ||\phi||_{H^{r+1}(\Gamma)} + C ||\phi_h - R_h \phi||_{H^0(\Gamma)} ||u_h||_{H^0(\Gamma)}. \end{aligned}$$

If, in the above Theorems, we have

$$\|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^{1/2}(\Gamma)} = O\left(h^{p-1/2}\right)$$
(4.2.12)

 $\quad \text{and} \quad$

$$\|f_h - R_h f\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} = O(h^p), \qquad (4.2.13)$$

then Corollary 4.2.1 gives

$$||u - u_h||_{H^0(\Gamma)} = O\left(h^{\min(r,p-1)}\right),$$

and the super-convergence property is given by the error estimate

$$||u - u_h^*||_{H^{-r-1}(\Gamma)} = O\left(h^{\min(2r+1,p)}\right).$$

If, in addition,

$$\|\phi_h - R_h \phi\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} = O\left(h^p\right),$$

then from Corollary 4.2.2, we have

$$\langle u, \phi
angle - \langle u_h, \phi_h
angle = O\left(h^{\min(2r+1,p)}
ight).$$

4.3 Approximating the Potentials

Let $u_h \in S_h^{r,e}$ be the solution of the perturbed Galerkin equation (3.1.8). We can compute the single layer and double layer potentials $\mathcal{V}u_h$ and $\mathcal{W}g$, given by

$$\mathcal{V}u_{h}(\mathbf{z}) = \int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) u_{h}(\mathbf{y}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$
$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} K[\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] |\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| ds$$

and

$$\mathcal{W}g(\mathbf{z}) = \int_{\Gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) g(\mathbf{y}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$

= $\sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K[\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] |\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| ds$
= $\sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \mathbf{n}_{k}(s) \cdot K[\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] ds$

for $\mathbf{z} \in \Omega^+$, where $\mathbf{n}_k(s) = [-(\mathbf{m}'_k)_2(s), (\mathbf{m}'_k)_1(s)].$

We introduce the notation for the kernel of the perturbed double layer potential \mathcal{W}_h . Let

$$L(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{y}) = \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}) = \nu_{\mathbf{y}} \cdot \nabla K(\mathbf{z} - \mathbf{y}),$$

and define

$$L_h(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{y}) = \nu_{\mathbf{y}} \cdot \nabla K(\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{y}}).$$

After interpolating the curved boundary Γ , we obtain the perturbed single layer potential $\mathcal{V}_h u_h(\mathbf{z})$ and double layer potential $\mathcal{W}_h g(\mathbf{z})$, defined by

$$\mathcal{V}_{h}u_{h}(\mathbf{z}) = \int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{y}}) u_{h}(\mathbf{y}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$

$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} K[\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)] u_{h}[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] |\mathbf{m}_{k}'(s)| ds$$

$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} K[\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)] \sum_{i=1}^{r} U_{k,i} P_{i}(s) ds$$

$$= \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{i=1}^{r} U_{k,i} \int_{0}^{1} K[\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)] P_{i}(s) ds \qquad (4.3.1)$$

and

$$\mathcal{W}_{h}g(\mathbf{z}) = \int_{\Gamma} L_{h}(\mathbf{z}, \mathbf{y}) g(\mathbf{y}) d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$

=
$$\sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \mathbf{n}_{k}(s) \cdot \nabla K[\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_{k}(s)] g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] ds. \qquad (4.3.2)$$

Chapter 5

IMPLEMENTATION AND NUMERICAL EXPERIMENTS

5.1 Strategies of Implementation

In a practical implementation of the Galerkin method, it is usually necessary to use numerical quadratures to evaluate the coefficients and right-hand sides of the linear algebraic equations $A\mathbf{U} = \mathbf{F}$.

We now focus on the coefficients of such a system of linear equations.

As in Chapter 2, we denote the $r \times r$ element stiffness matrix for $\Delta_k \times \Delta_l$ by

$$A^{(k,l)} = \left[a_{ij}^{(k,l)}\right]_{1 \le i,j \le r}, \qquad 1 \le k, l \le N,$$

where

$$a_{ij}^{(k,l)} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(\frac{b}{|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}\right) P_i(s) P_j(t) \, ds \, dt, \qquad 0 \le s, t \le 1.$$
(5.1.1)

Note that

$$A^{(l,k)} = [A^{(k,l)}]^T, \qquad 1 \le k \le l \le N.$$

We define the $r \times r$ matrix

$$P(s,t) = [P_i(s) P_j(t)]_{1 \le i,j \le r},$$

and rewrite the double integral in (5.1.1) as

$$A^{(k,l)} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \log(b) \int_0^1 \int_0^1 P(s,t) \, ds \, dt - E \tag{5.1.2}$$

where

$$E = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log(|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|) P(s, t) \, ds \, dt$$

depends on k and l.

In general it is not possible to evaluate the integral E analytically. However E can be obtained approximately with the help of the Q-point Gauss-Legendre quadrature rule

$$\int_0^1 f(s) \, ds \approx \sum_{q=1}^Q w_q \, f(\xi_q)$$

for an appropriate choice of Q. The details of computing w_q and ξ_q can be found in [5, Theorem 5.3].

In order to reduce the cost of the quadrature so that the integrand evaluations are cheaper, we consider evaluating E under several different conditions. That means, we do not apply the global singularity subtraction to the whole operator but only where it is necessary.

Firstly, when k = l, we use the splitting

$$\log |\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)| = \log |s - t| + \log \frac{|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}{|s - t|}$$

and put

$$E_{I}^{[Q]} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \log|s-t| P(s,t) \, ds \, dt + \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{p=1}^{Q} \sum_{q=1}^{Q} w_{p} \, w_{q} \log\left(\frac{|\mathbf{m}_{k}(\xi_{p}) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(\xi_{q})|}{|\xi_{p} - \xi_{q}|}\right) P(\xi_{p},\xi_{q})$$
(5.1.3)

with the understanding that

$$\frac{|\mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p) - \mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q)|}{|\xi_p - \xi_q|} = |\mathbf{m}'_k(\xi_p)| \qquad \text{if } p = q.$$

Secondly, if Δ_k and Δ_l are neighbouring elements, for example, if l = k + 1, then a special singularity subtraction technique is used:

$$\log |\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)| = \log |\mathbf{m}'_k(1)(s-1) - \mathbf{m}'_l(0)t| + \log \frac{|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}{|\mathbf{m}'_k(1)(s-1) - \mathbf{m}'_l(0)t|}$$

The quantity $\frac{|\mathbf{m}_k(s) - \mathbf{m}_l(t)|}{|\mathbf{m}'_k(1)(s-1) - \mathbf{m}'_l(0)t|}$ is smooth for $0 \le s \le 1$ and $0 \le t \le 1$ because

 $\mathbf{m}_k(1) = \mathbf{m}_l(0),$

so we put

$$E_{II}^{[Q]} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(|\mathbf{m}'_k(1)(s-1) - \mathbf{m}'_l(0)t|\right) P(s,t) \, ds \, dt \\ + \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{p=1}^Q \sum_{q=1}^Q w_p \, w_q \log\left(\frac{|\mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p) - \mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q)|}{|\mathbf{m}'_k(1)(\xi_p - 1) - \mathbf{m}'_l(0)\xi_q|}\right) P(\xi_p, \xi_q). \quad (5.1.4)$$

For the special case of k = N and l = 1 , the second term of $E_{II}^{[Q]}$ takes the form

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{p=1}^{Q} \sum_{q=1}^{Q} w_p w_q \log\left(\frac{|\mathbf{m}_N(\xi_p) - \mathbf{m}_1(\xi_q)|}{|\mathbf{m}_N'(1)(\xi_p - 1) - \mathbf{m}_1'(0)\xi_q|}\right) P(\xi_p, \xi_q).$$
(5.1.5)

The first terms of $E_I^{[Q]}$ and $E_{II}^{[Q]}$ can be computed analytically, as explained in the Appendix.

Finally, in the case when \triangle_k and \triangle_l are not neighbours, that is, neither k = l nor $k = l \pm 1$, we put

$$E_{III}^{[Q]} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{p=1}^{Q} \sum_{q=1}^{Q} w_p w_q \log\left(|\mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p) - \mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q)|\right) P(\xi_p, \xi_q)$$
(5.1.6)

by applying the Gauss rule straight away.

Next we consider the right-hand side of the system of linear equations.

If f_h is the L^2 -projection of f onto $S_h^{r+1,e}$ as we assumed in the last Chapter, then $\langle f - f_h, v_h \rangle = 0$ for all $v_h \in S_h^{r+1,e}$, i.e.,

$$\langle f_h, v_h \rangle = \langle f, v_h \rangle.$$

The element load vector $\mathbf{F}^{(l)}$ in $\Delta_l, l = 1, \dots, N$, is denoted by $\mathbf{F}^{(l)} = \left[\mathbf{F}_j^{(l)}\right]_{1 \le j \le r}$, where

$$\mathbf{F}_{j}^{(l)} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\mathbf{n}_{k}(s) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_{l}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]}{|\mathbf{m}_{k}(s) - \mathbf{m}_{l}(t)|^{2}} \left(g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] - g[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)]\right) P_{j}(t) \, ds \, dt$$

or

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{F}_{j}^{(l)} &= -\frac{1}{2} \int_{0}^{1} g[\mathbf{m}_{l}(t)] P_{j}(t) dt \\ &+ \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\mathbf{n}_{k}(s) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_{l}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)]}{|\mathbf{m}_{l}(t) - \mathbf{m}_{k}(s)|^{2}} g[\mathbf{m}_{k}(s)] P_{j}(t) ds dt \end{aligned}$$

with $\mathbf{n}_k(s) = [-(\mathbf{m}'_k)_2(s), (\mathbf{m}'_k)_1(s)].$

We evaluate $\mathbf{F}_{j}^{(l)}$ using Gaussian quadrature. Write $\mathbf{F}^{[Q]}$ (dependent on j and l) as an approximation of $\mathbf{F}_{j}^{(l)}$, define

$$P(s) = \left[P_i(s)\right]_{1 \le i \le r}$$

and put

$$\mathbf{F}^{[Q]} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{p=1}^{Q} \sum_{q=1}^{Q} w_p w_q \frac{\mathbf{n}_k(\xi_p) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q) - \mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)]}{|\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q) - \mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)|^2} (g[\mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)] - g[\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q)]) P(\xi_q).$$

or

$$\mathbf{F}^{[Q]} = -\frac{1}{2} \sum_{q=1}^{Q} w_q g[\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q)] P(\xi_q) \\ + \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^{N} \sum_{p=1}^{Q} \sum_{q=1}^{Q} w_p w_q \frac{\mathbf{n}_k(\xi_p) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q) - \mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)]}{|\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q) - \mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)|^2} g[\mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)] P(\xi_q).$$

If k = l and $\xi_p = \xi_q$, then in the second term we use the limiting value

$$\lim_{\xi_q \to \xi_p} \frac{\mathbf{n}_k(\xi_p) \cdot [\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q) - \mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)]}{|\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q) - \mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)|^2}$$
$$= \lim_{\xi_q \to \xi_p} \frac{\mathbf{n}_k(\xi_p) \cdot \mathbf{m}'_l(\xi_q)}{2|\mathbf{m}'_l(\xi_q)| |\mathbf{m}_l(\xi_q) - \mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)|}$$
$$= \frac{\mathbf{n}_k(\xi_p) \cdot \mathbf{m}''_l(\xi_p)}{2|\mathbf{m}'_l(\xi_p)|^2}.$$

Remark: In the numerical experiments, we shall be interested in the effect of replacing $\mathbf{m}_k(s)$ by $\tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(s)$ in the quantities above.

5.2 Numerical Potentials

For $\mathbf{z} \in \Omega^+$, the perturbed potential is given by $\phi_h(\mathbf{z}) = \mathcal{W}_h g(\mathbf{z}) - \mathcal{V}_h u_h(\mathbf{z})$, where $\mathcal{V}_h u_h(\mathbf{z})$ and $\mathcal{W}_h g(\mathbf{z})$ are defined in (4.3.1) and (4.3.2) respectively. The numerical perturbed single layer potential $\mathcal{V}_h u_h(\mathbf{z})$ and the perturbed double layer potential $\mathcal{W}_h g(\mathbf{z})$ will be computed by using the Gauss-Legendre quadrature rule. They are

$$\mathcal{V}_h u_h(\mathbf{z}) \approx \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{i=1}^r U_{k,i} \sum_{p=1}^Q w_p K[\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(\xi_p)] P_i(\xi_p)$$
$$= \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{i=1}^r U_{k,i} \sum_{p=1}^Q w_p \log\left(\frac{b}{|\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(\xi_p)|}\right) P_i(\xi_p)$$

and

$$\mathcal{W}_h g(\mathbf{z}) \approx \frac{1}{2\pi} \sum_{k=1}^N \sum_{i=1}^r g[\mathbf{m}_k(\xi_p)] \sum_{p=1}^Q w_p \frac{\mathbf{n}_k(s) \cdot [\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(\xi_p)]}{|\mathbf{z} - \tilde{\mathbf{m}}_k(\xi_p)|^2},$$

where Q is number of the Gauss points, ξ_p is the Gauss point, w_p is the Gauss weight, and $\mathbf{n}_k(s) = [-(\mathbf{m}'_k)_2(s), (\mathbf{m}'_k)_1(s)].$

Note that, the above kernels of the integrals are not singular as $\mathbf{z} \notin \Gamma$.

5.3 Numerical Experiments

We now present errors and convergence rates for some numerical experiments. The code was written in FORTRAN 90 and run on a DEC alpha.

Recall from (2.1.22) that the boundary integral equation is

$$\int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} = \int_{\Gamma} [g(\mathbf{y}) - g(\mathbf{x})] \, \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma, \quad (5.3.1)$$

or

$$\int_{\Gamma} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) u(\mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} = -\frac{1}{2} \, g(\mathbf{x}) + \int_{\Gamma} g(\mathbf{y}) \, \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}, \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma, \quad (5.3.2)$$

where $K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \log \frac{b}{|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}|}$. Equation (5.3.1) or (5.3.2) arises from the Dirichlet problem for Laplace's equation

$$\begin{aligned} \Delta \phi &= 0 & \text{ in } \Omega^+, \\ \phi^+ &= g & \text{ on } \Gamma, \end{aligned}$$

using the direct boundary integral method, where Ω^+ is a bounded domain with a curved boundary Γ , $u = \phi_{\nu}^+$ and ν is the unit inward normal to Ω^+ .

The boundary Γ is parameterised by a smooth function $\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{F}(\tau), 0 \leq \tau \leq 1$. We approximate \mathbf{F} using polynomial interpolation of two different orders.

In our experiments, the function $g(\mathbf{x}), \mathbf{x} = (x_1, x_2) \in \Gamma$, in the right-hand side of (5.3.1) or (5.3.2) is chosen to be the restriction to Γ of a known harmonic function, which is thus the solution ϕ of the Dirichlet problem. The exact solution u of equation (5.3.1) or (5.3.2) is given by

$$u =
u(\mathbf{x}) \cdot
abla \phi(\mathbf{x}).$$

For finding an approximate solution to the boundary integral equation (5.3.1) or (5.3.2), the boundary element space $S_h^{r,e}$ is always chosen as the piecewise constant space defined in Chapter 2 with r = 1 and e = 0.

For k, l = 1, ..., N, in the general case of the point \mathbf{x} in Δ_l and point \mathbf{y} in Δ_k with $|k-l| \geq 2$, the number of Gauss points chosen for computing $E_{III}^{[Q]}$ in (5.1.6) depends on the distance between \mathbf{x} and \mathbf{y} . The idea is to make computation cheaper by using

fewer Gauss points where possible rather than the same number of Gauss points everywhere, while maintaining the order of convergence. Our strategy employs four different bands of the distance $|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}|$, with more Gauss points at smaller distances, and fewer Gauss points for larger distances.

However, in the special cases when the boundary elements Δ_k and Δ_l coincide (k = l) or are neighbours $(k = l \pm 1)$, we use only a few Gauss points to compute $E_I^{[Q]}$ and $E_{II}^{[Q]}$ in (5.1.3) and (5.1.4) respectively, since we have already eliminated the singularities in the integrands.

In numerical experiments, we compute the relative errors and the orders of convergence in the L^2 norm, and also the errors and orders of convergence for point evaluations of the potentials, both for an exact parametric representation of the boundary, and for linear (p = 2) or quadratic (p = 3) interpolation.

Let ϕ be the solution of the Dirichlet problem and ϕ_h be the perturbed potential given by $\phi_h(\mathbf{z}) = \mathcal{W}_h g(\mathbf{z}) - \mathcal{V}_h u_h(\mathbf{z})$, where $\mathcal{V}_h u_h(\mathbf{z})$ and $\mathcal{W}_h g(\mathbf{z})$ are defined in (4.3.1) and (4.3.2) respectively. Since r = 1, the theoretical error bounds for the exact boundary are (see Corollary 2.4.1)

$$||u - u_h||_{H^0(\Gamma)} \leq Ch ||u||_{H^1(\Gamma)}, \qquad (5.3.3)$$

$$|\phi(\mathbf{z}) - \phi_h(\mathbf{z})| \leq C(\mathbf{z}) ||u - u_h||_{H^{-2}(\Gamma)} \leq C(\mathbf{z}) h^3 ||u||_{H^1(\Gamma)}.$$
 (5.3.4)

For the approximate boundary, we expect

$$\|u - u_h\|_{H^0(\Gamma)} \leq Ch^{\min(1, p-1)}, \tag{5.3.5}$$

$$|\phi(\mathbf{z}) - \phi_h(\mathbf{z})| \leq C(\mathbf{z})h^{\min(3,p)}, \qquad (5.3.6)$$

see Corollary 4.2.1 and 4.2.2.

5.3.1 Smooth Boundary

Numerical results for an integral equation on a smooth, closed boundary Γ in \mathbb{R}^2 are presented here. Specifically, the curved boundary Γ is an ellipse with semi-axes a_1 and a_2 ,

$$\frac{x_1^2}{a_1^2} + \frac{x_2^2}{a_2^2} = 1. (5.3.7)$$

It follows that the parametric representation is expressed as

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{F}(\tau) = (a_1 \cos 2\pi \, \tau, a_2 \sin 2\pi \, \tau), \qquad 0 \le \tau \le 1.$$
 (5.3.8)

For the harmonic function $\phi(\mathbf{x})$ we chose

$$\phi(\mathbf{x}) = e^{x_1} \cos x_2 + x_1 + x_2, \qquad \mathbf{x} = (x_1, x_2) \in \mathbb{R}^2, \qquad (5.3.9)$$

so the exact solution u of the integral equation is

$$u = \nu(\mathbf{x}) \cdot \nabla \phi(\mathbf{x})$$

= $\frac{-x_2' e^{x_1} \cos(x_2) - x_1' e^{x_1} \sin(x_2) + x_1' - x_2'}{\left(\left(x_1'\right)^2 + \left(x_2'\right)^2\right)^{1/2}},$ (5.3.10)

where

$$u(\mathbf{x}) = \frac{(-x_2', x_1')}{|\mathbf{x}'|}, \ \mathbf{x} = (x_1, x_2) \quad \text{and} \quad \mathbf{x}' = (x_1', x_2').$$

Since the logarithmic capacity of the ellipse (5.3.7) is equal to the arithmetic mean of its major and minor semi-axes, we choose the constant $b > \frac{a_1+a_2}{2}$ to ensure that the stiffness matrix is positive definite. The test point $\mathbf{z} \in \Omega^+$ is taken to be (0.50, 0.50) in our calculation of the errors in the potentials.

We compute the numerical solution of the integral equation not only with the exact elliptical boundary, but also with approximate boundaries using piecewise linear and piecewise quadratic interpolation.

N	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.85824E + 00		0.85659E + 00		0.85779E+00	
16	0.40728E+00	1.08	0.39857E+00	1.10	0.40703E+00	1.08
32	0.20455E+00	0.99	0.20249E+00	0.98	0.20454E+00	0.99
64	0.10155E+00	1.01	0.10123E+00	1.00	0.10155E+00	1.10
128	0.50632E-01	1.00	0.50589E-01	1.00	0.50632E-01	1.00
256	0.25295E-01	1.00	0.25290E-01	1.00	0.25295E-01	1.00
512	0.12645E-01	1.00	0.12644E-01	1.00	0.12645E-01	1.00
1024	0.63221E-02	1.00	0.63221E-02	1.00	0.63221E-02	1.00

Table 5.1: Relative errors and orders of convergence in L^2 norm for Example 1.

Example 1. Consider the integral equation in the form of (5.3.2) for a smooth boundary Γ . The curve boundary Γ is an ellipse with $a_1 = 4$ and $a_2 = 2$, and the scaling parameter is b = 4. The distance bands for the quadrature are set as 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, 4.0 with the corresponding numbers of Gauss points 6, 5, 4, 3. A 3-point Gauss rule is used in the other situations. The results are given in Tables 5.1 and 5.2.

The Tables 5.1 and 5.2 present the errors and rates of convergence in both the L^2 norm of u and the pointwise value $\phi(\mathbf{z})$.

By comparing results among the cases, we see that the errors in L^2 norm for the cases of the linear and quadratic interpolation are close to those for the case of the exact boundary, and their orders of convergence are stable as well. Table 5.1 shows that we have a good correspondence between the experimental results and the theoretical results (5.3.5). In Table 5.2, the orders of convergence of potentials for linear and quadratic function interpolation on a boundary are 2 and 3 respectively,

N	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
1.	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.27510E+00		0.83200E-01		0.26140E+00	
16	0.48152E-02	5.84	0.12529E+00	-0.59	0.51084E-02	5.68
32	0.54225E-03	3.15	0.31427E-01	2.00	0.52415E-03	3.28
64	0.50860E-04	3.41	0.80545E-02	1.96	0.50024E-04	3.39
128	0.57104E-05	3.15	0.20349E-02	1.98	0.56955E-05	3.13
256	0.68563E-06	3.06	0.51123E-03	1.99	0.68941E-06	3.05
512	0.84317E-07	3.02	0.12811E-03	2.00	0.85145E-07	3.02
1024	0.10465E-07	3.01	0.32066E-04	2.00	0.10590E-07	3.01

Table 5.2: Errors and orders of convergence of potentials for Example 1.

these results approach the prediction (5.3.6).

5.3.2 Corner Problem

The error estimates and the rates of convergence proved in section 4.2 are valid for the first kind integral equation over a smooth boundary Γ .

In the current section, we explore the case when the boundary Γ is not smooth, that is, when the domain has corners. In the case of a non-smooth boundary, singularities in the solution u will generally be produced at the corners. These singularities will degrade the rates of convergence when the Galerkin method is applied with uniform meshes. In order to restore optimal orders of convergence, a mesh grading technique is considered. In our numerical experiments, the boundary Γ is given by a "teardrop-shaped" region which contains only one corner (described in [15, 16]). We use the parameterisation

$$\mathbf{F}:[0,1]\to\Gamma,$$

defined by

$$\mathbf{F}(\tau) = [\sin(\tau\pi)\,\cos(1-\chi)\,(\tau\pi),\,\sin(\tau\pi)\,\sin(1-\chi)\,(\tau\pi)],\tag{5.3.11}$$

where the corner is at $\tau = 0$ or $\tau = 1$, and the interior angle between the tangent at $\tau = 0$ is $(1 - \chi) \pi$, $0 < |\chi| < 1$.

We define graded meshes by choosing $q \ge 1$ and putting

$$\tau_{k} = \begin{cases} \left(\frac{1}{2}\right)^{1-q} \left(\frac{k}{N}\right)^{q}, & k \in \left[0, \frac{N}{2}\right], \\ 1 - \left(\frac{1}{2}\right)^{1-q} \left(1 - \frac{k}{N}\right)^{q}, & k \in \left(\frac{N}{2}, N\right]. \end{cases}$$
(5.3.12)

Note that these meshes are uniform when q = 1.

Another problem occurs when the direct method is applied in the formulation of the boundary integral equation, because of the behaviour of the right-hand side of the boundary integral equation

$$f(\mathbf{x}) = -\frac{1}{2}g(\mathbf{x}) + \frac{1}{2}Tg(\mathbf{y}), \qquad \mathbf{x} \in \Gamma.$$
(5.3.13)

Quadrature errors lead to a relatively poor convergence rate because a fixed singularity arises in the kernel of double layer operator T at the corner point. The tricky point is how to smooth out the singularity in the kernel of the double layer potential. Jaswon and Symm in the book [28] address some general techniques by which the kernel of the double layer potential can be integrated analytically along a smooth arc on the boundary. We have instead used a singularity subtraction method which we already mentioned in Chapter 2, that weakens the singularity in the double layer operator, making the integrals easier to tackle. That is, when a boundary Γ is not smooth, we use a singularity subtraction method to write the operator T as

$$Tu(\mathbf{x}) = u(\mathbf{x}) + 2 \int_{\Gamma} [u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}) \, d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$

so that the denominator of $\frac{\partial}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y})$ can be cancelled with $[u(\mathbf{y}) - u(\mathbf{x})]$ as $\mathbf{x} \to \mathbf{y}$. In other words, we work with the integral equation in the form (5.3.1) instead of (5.3.2), so that the right-hand side is in the form

$$f(\mathbf{x}) = \int_{\Gamma} [g(\mathbf{y}) - g(\mathbf{x})] \frac{\partial K(\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y})}{\partial \nu_{\mathbf{y}}} d\sigma_{\mathbf{y}}$$
(5.3.14)

This singularity subtraction method reduces the quadrature errors from the double layer potential operator without appreciably increasing the amount of computation involved.

• Results for a Smooth Potential

In this experiment, we consider the problem over the "teardrop-shaped" boundary Γ with a smooth potential ϕ on Γ .

Example 2. Consider the integral equation (5.3.1), and suppose $g = \phi|_{\Gamma}$ when

$$\phi(\mathbf{x}) = e^{x_1} \cos(x_2) + x_1 + x_2, \qquad \mathbf{x} = (x_1, x_2) \in \Gamma,$$

is harmonic and smooth. The exact solution u of the integral equation (5.3.1) is computed by formula (5.3.10). The Gauss rules with 6, 5, 4, 3 points are used when the distances $|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{y}|$ are 0.1, 0.2, 0.3, 0.4 respectively, and the 3-point Gauss rule is used in other places. This example contains cases with different value of χ , they are,

(a) $\chi = 0.75, q = 3 \text{ and } \mathbf{z} = (0.7, 0.25);$

N	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
1	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.45614E+00		0.45352E + 00		0.45308E+00	
16	0.26174E+00	0.80	0.25542E + 00	0.83	0.26097E+00	0.80
32	0.13381E+00	0.97	0.13208E+00	0.95	0.13376E+00	0.96
64	0.66833E-01	1.00	0.66537 E-01	0.99	0.66831E-01	1.00
128	0.33378E-01	1.00	0.33336E-01	1.00	0.33378E-01	1.00
256	0.16682E-01	1.00	0.16676E-01	1.00	0.16682E-01	1.00
512	0.83399E-02	1.00	0.83392E-02	1.00	0.83399E-02	1.00
1024	0.41698E-02	1.00	0.41697E-02	1.00	0.41698E-02	1.00

Table 5.3: Relative errors and orders of convergence in L^2 norm for case (a) in Example 2.

N	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
1	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.23325E-01		0.61348E+00		0.27579E-01	
16	0.30158E-03	6.27	0.10478E+00	2.55	0.83268E-03	5.05
32	0.88215E-04	1.77	0.32864E-01	1.67	0.11803E-03	2.82
64	0.82860E-05	3.41	0.81128E-02	2.02	0.12265E-04	3.27
128	0.99929E-06	3.05	0.20282E-02	2.00	0.12626E-05	3.28
256	0.12390E-06	3.01	0.50708E-03	2.00	0.14142E-06	3.16
512	0.15455E-07	3.00	0.12677E-03	2.00	0.16679E-07	3.08
1024	0.19309E-08	3.00	0.31692E-04	2.00	0.20234E-08	3.04

Table 5.4: Errors and orders of convergence of potentials for case (a) in Example 2.

N	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
1	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.48474E+00		0.44720E+00		0.47915E+00	
16	0.26046E+00	0.90	0.25389E + 00	0.82	0.25991E+00	0.88
32	0.13064E+00	1.00	0.12955E+00	0.97	0.13061E+00	0.99
64	0.65154E-01	1.00	0.64996E-01	1.00	0.65153E-01	1.00
128	0.32543E-01	1.00	0.32522E-01	1.00	0.32543E-01	1.00
256	0.16266E-01	1.00	0.16264E-01	1.00	0.16266E-01	1.00
512	0.81326E-02	1.00	0.81322E-02	1.00	0.81326E-02	1.00
1024	0.40662E-02	1.00	0.40661E-02	1.00	0.40662E-02	1.00

Table 5.5: Relative errors and orders of convergence in L^2 norm for case (b) in Example 2.

N	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
1	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.40230E-02		0.31083E+00		0.63365E-01	
16	0.47130E-03	3.09	0.14180E+00	1.13	0.35483E-02	4.16
32	0.52705E-04	3.16	0.46779E-02	4.92	0.37129E-03	3.26
64	0.71806E-05	2.88	0.16293E-02	1.52	0.53041E-04	2.81
128	0.91606E-06	2.97	0.40179E-03	2.02	0.63509E-05	3.06
256	0.11509E-06	2.99	0.10040E-03	2.00	0.77444E-06	3.04
512	0.14405E-07	3.00	0.25104E-04	2.00	0.95686E-07	3.02
1024	0.18011E-08	3.00	0.62770E-05	2.00	0.11893E-07	3.01

Table 5.6: Errors and orders of convergence of potentials for case (b) in Example 2.

(b)
$$\chi = -0.75, q = 3 \text{ and } \mathbf{z} = (0.2, 0.4).$$

Qualitatively, the order of convergence in Tables 5.3-5.6 are similar to those obtained for a smooth boundary, suggesting that the mesh grading restores the rate of convergence. In relation to the smooth potential ϕ on boundary Γ in example 2, in Table 5.3 and Table 5.5, one sees that the relative errors of piecewise linear and piecewise quadratic interpolation are just slightly different whether value of χ is chosen to be positive or not. In particular, the errors for the potentials in Table 5.4 and Table 5.6 for cases of piecewise linear and piecewise quadratic boundary approximation are quite different, but the rates of convergence of potentials hold for the predicted value p.

• Results for a Non-smooth Potential

In all the cases above, the potential ϕ is smooth. We now consider what happens when ϕ is not smooth at the corner point.

If a harmonic function ϕ takes prescribed continuous values on the boundary Γ a corner of angle α , the function ϕ may in general have the form

$$\phi(\rho,\theta) = A \rho^{\frac{\pi}{\alpha}} \sin(\frac{\pi}{\alpha}\theta) + \phi_0, \qquad (5.3.15)$$

where ρ , θ are polar coordinates relative to the corner, A is a constant, $\alpha = (1 - \chi) \pi$ is the size of the angle of the corner, $0 < \theta < \alpha$ and ϕ_0 is a smoother term.

If χ is chosen to be negative, then the derivatives of ϕ becomes infinite in magnitude as ρ approaches to zero. Thus, it is difficult to compute ϕ accurately in this region when such singularities arise. The book [28] gives some treatments to tackle this problem, but they are often complicated in practice. Instead, we use singularity subtraction and mesh grading. **Example 3.** We are concerned with the integral equation (5.3.1), and give a specific harmonic function

$$\phi(\mathbf{x}) = \operatorname{Im}\left[(x_1 + ix_2)^{\frac{\pi}{\alpha}} \right] + e^{x_1} \cos(x_2) + x_1 + x_2, \qquad (5.3.16)$$

where $\alpha = (1 - \chi) \pi$ and $\mathbf{x} = (x_1, x_2) \in \Gamma$. The gradient of ϕ is

$$\nabla \phi(\mathbf{x}) = \left[-\frac{1}{\alpha}\rho^{(\frac{1}{\alpha}-1)}\sin(\theta - \frac{1}{\alpha}\theta) + \phi_1, \frac{1}{\alpha}\rho^{(\frac{1}{\alpha}-1)}\cos(\theta - \frac{1}{\alpha}\theta) + \phi_2\right],$$

where $\rho = \sqrt{x_1^2 + x_2^2}$, $\theta = \arctan(x_2/x_1) \in (0, \alpha)$, $\phi_1 = e^{x_1} \cos(x_2) + 1$ and $\phi_2 = -e^{x_1} \sin(x_2) + 1$.

The other conditions given are as same as in Example 2. We also consider different cases when χ is positive and negative:

(a)
$$q = 3, \chi = 0.75 \text{ and } \mathbf{z} = (0.7, 0.25);$$

(b)
$$q = 3, \chi = -0.3$$
 and $z = (0.2, 0.6)$.

The results for those cases are given in Tables 5.7-5.10.

The results in Table 5.7-5.8 are again in satisfactory agreement with expectations, even though the function ϕ is not smooth. When we take $\chi < 0$, from Tables 5.9-5.10 the convergence rates are slightly worse than when $\chi > 0$, which is not surprising in view of the stronger singularity in the solution.

λĭ	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
1.	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.66942E+00		0.18456E+01		0.66831E+00	
16	0.33997E+00	0.98	0.90973E+00	1.02	0.33934E+00	0.98
32	0.16660E+00	1.03	0.44312E+00	1.04	0.16651E + 00	1.03
64	0.82823E-01	1.01	0.22236E+00	0.99	0.82820E-01	1.01
128	0.41286E-01	1.00	0.11126E+00	1.00	0.41286E-01	1.00
256	0.20624E-01	1.00	0.55641E-01	1.00	0.20624E-01	1.00
512	0.10309E-01	1.00	0.27822E-01	1.00	0.10309E-01	1.00
1024	0.51544E-02	1.00	0.13911E-01	1.00	0.51544E-02	1.00

Table 5.7: Relative errors and orders of convergence in L^2 norm for case (a) in Example 3.

	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.76876E-01		0.80326E+00		0.78638E-01	
16	0.25398E-02	4.92	0.13389E+00	2.58	0.30525E-02	4.69
32	0.47244E-03	2.43	0.41585E-01	1.69	0.51181E-03	2.58
64	0.52002E-04	3.18	0.10286E-01	2.02	0.56977E-04	3.17
128	0.63787E-05	3.03	0.25697E-02	2.00	0.67070E-05	3.09
256	0.79363E-06	3.01	0.64217E-03	2.00	0.81551E-06	3.04
512	0.99088E-07	3.00	0.16051E-03	2.00	0.10062E-06	3.02
1024	0.12382E-07	3.00	0.40122E-04	2.00	0.12499E-07	3.01

Table 5.8: Errors and orders of convergence of potentials for case (a) in Example 3.

NT	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
11	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.46071E+00		0.11886E+01		0.46024E+00	
16	0.22233E+00	1.05	0.59798E+00	0.99	0.22206E+00	1.05
32	0.11179E+00	0.99	0.30468E+00	0.97	0.11177E+00	0.99
64	0.56514E-01	0.98	0.15464E+00	0.98	0.56513E-01	0.98
128	0.28711E-01	0.98	0.78653E-01	0.98	0.28711E-01	0.98
256	0.14657E-01	0.97	0.40164E-01	0.97	0.14657E-01	0.97
512	0.75225E-02	0.96	0.20615E-01	0.96	0.75225E-02	0.96
1024	0.38844E-02	0.95	0.10645E-01	0.95	0.38844E-02	0.95

Table 5.9: Relative errors and orders of convergence in L^2 norm for case (b) in Example 3.

N	Exact		Linear		Quadratic	
1	boundary		interpolation		interpolation	
8	0.28599E-01		0.27114E+01		0.18902E-01	
16	0.12051E-02	4.57	0.10191E+00	4.73	0.38863E-02	2.28
32	0.38369E-03	1.65	0.23674E-01	2.11	0.40437E-03	3.26
64	0.41168E-04	3.22	0.59306E-02	2.00	0.38245E-04	3.40
128	0.50976E-05	3.01	0.14799E-02	2.00	0.49119E-05	2.96
256	0.63891E-06	3.00	0.36971E-03	2.00	0.62709E-06	2.97
512	0.80525E-07	2.99	0.92401E-04	2.00	0.79776E-07	2.97
1024	0.10210E-07	2.98	0.23097E-04	2.00	0.10162E-07	2.97

Table 5.10: Errors and orders of convergence of potentials for case (b) in Example 3.

Appendix: Evaluation of Some Integrals

Evaluating E has been discussed in the section 5.1. We now deal with the analytical computation of the first term of (5.1.2),

$$\log(b) \int_0^1 \int_0^1 P(s,t) \, ds \, dt, \tag{5.3.17}$$

the first term of $E_I^{[Q]}$,

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \log|s-t| P(s,t) \, ds \, dt, \qquad (5.3.18)$$

and the first term of $E_{II}^{[Q]}$,

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log\left(|\mathbf{m}_k'(1)(s-1) - \mathbf{m}_l'(0)t|\right) P(s,t) \, ds \, dt, \tag{5.3.19}$$

where $P(s,t) = [P_i(s)P_j(t)]_{1 \le i,j \le r}$ and b is a constant. Actually, it is straightforward to compute (5.3.17) and (5.3.18), but some strategies will be used to compute (5.3.19).

For brevity, we use the notations

$$\mathbf{a} = \mathbf{m}'_k(1), \ \mathbf{b} = \mathbf{m}'_l(0), \qquad \mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b} \in \mathbb{R}^2,$$

to rewrite (5.3.19) as

$$\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log |(1-s)\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| P(s, t) \, ds \, dt.$$

We shall discuss three cases where \mathbf{a} and \mathbf{b} are of different values.

1. If $\mathbf{a} = 0$, then

$$\mathbf{F}(0, \mathbf{b}) = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log |t\mathbf{b}| P(s, t) \, ds \, dt$$

= $\log |\mathbf{b}| \int_0^1 \int_0^1 P(s, t) \, ds \, dt + \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log t P(s, t) \, ds \, dt.$

2. If $\mathbf{b} = 0$, then

$$\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{a},0) = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log |(1-s)\mathbf{a}| P(s,t) \, ds \, dt$$

= $\log |\mathbf{a}| \int_0^1 \int_0^1 P(s,t) \, ds \, dt + \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log(1-s) P(s,t) \, ds \, dt.$

3. If $\mathbf{a} \neq 0$ and $\mathbf{b} \neq 0$, then

$$\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log |s\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| P(1 - s, t) \, ds \, dt$$
$$= \mathbf{F}_1(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) + \mathbf{F}_2(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}),$$

where

$$\mathbf{F}_{1}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{s}^{1} \log |s\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| P(1 - s, t) dt ds,$$
$$\mathbf{F}_{2}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{s} \log |s\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| P(1 - s, t) dt ds.$$

We take s = tx, then

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{F}_{1} \left(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b} \right) \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{t} \log |s\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| \ P(1 - s, t) \, ds \, dt \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \log |t \, (x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b})| \ P(1 - tx, t) \, t \, dx \, dt \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \, \log t \, P(1 - tx, t) \, dx \, dt + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \, \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \ P(1 - tx, t) \, dx \, dt, \end{aligned}$$

 $\quad \text{and} \quad$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{F}_{2}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{s} \log |s\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| \ P(1 - s, t) \, dt \, ds \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{t}^{1} \log |s\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| \ P(1 - s, t) \, ds \, dt \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{s}^{1} \log |s\mathbf{a} + t\mathbf{b}| \ P(1 - t, s) \, dt \, ds \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \, \log t \, P(1 - t, tx) \, dx \, dt + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \, \log |x\mathbf{b} + \mathbf{a}| \ P(1 - t, tx) \, dx \, dt. \end{aligned}$$

We firstly select $\{P_1, \ldots, P_r\}$ as a basis of the test space of piecewise constant functions, that is, r = 1 and P(s, t) = 1. We obtain,

$$\log(b) \int_0^1 \int_0^1 P(s,t) \, ds \, dt = \log(b),$$

 $\quad \text{and} \quad$

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log |s-t| P(s,t) \, ds \, dt = -\frac{2}{3}.$$

For (5.3.19),

$$\mathbf{F}(0, \mathbf{b}) = \log |\mathbf{b}| - 1,$$
$$\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{a}, 0) = \log |\mathbf{a}| + 1,$$

and

$$\mathbf{F}_{1}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \, \log t \, dx \, dt + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \, \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, dx \, dt$$
$$= -\frac{1}{4} + \frac{1}{2} \int_{0}^{1} \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, dx.$$

Furthermore,

$$(xa_1 + b_1)^2 + (xa_2 + b_2)^2 = |\mathbf{a}|^2 x^2 + 2 |\mathbf{a}| |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta x + |\mathbf{b}|^2$$
$$= (|\mathbf{a}| x + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta)^2 + (|\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta)^2$$

with

$$\cos\theta = \frac{\mathbf{a}\cdot\mathbf{b}}{|\mathbf{a}||\mathbf{b}|}.$$

Let $u = |\mathbf{a}| x + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta$ and $c = |\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta$, we have

$$\int_{0}^{1} \log |\mathbf{x}\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, d\mathbf{x}$$

$$= \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|} \int_{|\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta}^{|\mathbf{a}| + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta} \log (u^{2} + c^{2}) \, du$$

$$= \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|} \left[G \left(|\mathbf{a}| + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta, \, |\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta \right) - G \left(|\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta, \, |\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta \right) \right],$$

where

$$G(u,c) = \int \log (u^2 + c^2) du$$

= $u \log (u^2 + c^2) - 2u + 2c \arctan \left(\frac{u}{c}\right).$

On other hand, we have

$$\mathbf{F}_{2}(\mathbf{a},\mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \log t \, dx \, dt + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \log |x\mathbf{b} + \mathbf{a}| \, dx \, dt$$
$$= \mathbf{F}_{1}(\mathbf{b},\mathbf{a}).$$

Finally,

$$\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \mathbf{F}_1(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) + \mathbf{F}_1(\mathbf{b}, \mathbf{a})$$
$$= -\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2} \int_0^1 \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, dx + \frac{1}{2} \int_0^1 \log |x\mathbf{b} + \mathbf{a}| \, dx$$

for $|\mathbf{a}| \neq 0$ and $|\mathbf{b}| \neq 0$.

If the basis $\{P_1, \ldots, P_r\}$ spans the space of piecewise linear functions, that is, r = 2, and $P_1(s) = 1 - s$ and $P_2(s) = s$, then

$$P(s,t) = \begin{bmatrix} (1-s)(1-t) & (1-s)t \\ s(1-t) & st \end{bmatrix}.$$

We have, for (5.3.17),

$$\log(b) \int_0^1 \int_0^1 P(s,t) \, ds \, dt = \frac{1}{4} \, \log(b) \left[\begin{array}{cc} 1 & 1 \\ 1 & 1 \end{array} \right],$$

for (5.3.18),

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 \log |s-t| P(s,t) \, ds \, dt = -\frac{1}{16} \begin{bmatrix} 7 & 5 \\ 5 & 7 \end{bmatrix},$$

and for (5.3.19), if **a** = 0, then

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{F}(0, \mathbf{b}) \\ &= \frac{1}{4} \log |\mathbf{b}| \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 \\ 1 & 1 \end{bmatrix} + \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \begin{bmatrix} \log(t) (1-s) (1-t) & \log(t) (1-s) t \\ \log(t) s (1-t) & \log(t) s t \end{bmatrix} ds dt \\ &= \frac{1}{4} \log |\mathbf{b}| \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 \\ 1 & 1 \end{bmatrix} - \frac{1}{8} \begin{bmatrix} 3 & 1 \\ 3 & 1 \end{bmatrix}, \end{aligned}$$

and if $\mathbf{b} = 0$, then

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{a},0) \\ &= \frac{1}{4} \log |\mathbf{a}| \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 \\ 1 & 1 \end{bmatrix} \\ &+ \int_0^1 \int_0^1 \begin{bmatrix} \log(1-s) (1-s) (1-t) & \log(1-s) (1-s) t \\ & \log(1-s) s (1-t) & \log(1-s) s t \end{bmatrix} ds dt \\ &= \frac{1}{4} \log |\mathbf{a}| \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 \\ 1 & 1 \end{bmatrix} - \frac{1}{8} \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 \\ 3 & 3 \end{bmatrix}. \end{aligned}$$

For the general case $|\mathbf{a}| \neq 0$ and $|\mathbf{b}| \neq 0$, the piecewise linear functions in the basis of boundary element space $P_i(s)$ times $P_j(t)$, i, j = 1, 2, is

$$P(1-tx,t) = \begin{bmatrix} (t-t^2)x & t^2x \\ (1-t) + (t^3-t^2)x & t-t^2x \end{bmatrix},$$

hence,

$$\mathbf{F}_{1}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \log(t) P(1 - tx, t) dx dt + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t \log|x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| P(1 - tx, t) dx dt = -\frac{1}{288} \begin{bmatrix} 7 & 9 \\ 33 & 27 \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} d_{11}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) & d_{12}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) \\ d_{21}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) & d_{22}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) \end{bmatrix}, \quad (5.3.20)$$
where

$$d_{11} (\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} (t^{2} - t) dt \int_{0}^{1} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx$$

$$= \frac{1}{12} \int_{0}^{1} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx,$$

$$d_{12} (\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} t^{3} dt \int_{0}^{1} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx$$

$$= \frac{1}{4} \int_{0}^{1} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx,$$

$$d_{21} (\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} (t - t^{2}) \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx dt + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} (t^{3} - t^{2}) x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx dt$$

$$= \frac{1}{6} \int_{0}^{1} \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx - \frac{1}{12} \int_{0}^{1} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx,$$

and

$$d_{22}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t^{2} \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, dx \, dt - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} t^{3} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, dx \, dt$$

= $\frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, dx - \frac{1}{4} \int_{0}^{1} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| \, dx.$

Recall that we let $u = |\mathbf{a}| x + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta$ and $c = |\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta$, therefore,

$$\int_{0}^{1} x \log |x\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}| dx$$

$$= \int_{0}^{1} x \log \left[(|\mathbf{a}| x + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta)^{2} + (|\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta)^{2} \right] dx$$

$$= \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|} \int_{|\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta}^{|\mathbf{a}| + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta} \left(\frac{u}{|\mathbf{a}|} - \frac{|\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta}{|\mathbf{a}|} \right) \log \left(u^{2} + c^{2} \right) du$$

$$= \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|^{2}} \left[H \left(|\mathbf{a}| + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta, |\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta \right) - H \left(|\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta, |\mathbf{b}| \sin \theta \right) \right]$$

$$-\frac{1}{2}\frac{|\mathbf{b}|\cos\theta}{|\mathbf{a}|^{2}}\left[G\left(|\mathbf{a}|+|\mathbf{b}|\cos\theta,|\mathbf{b}|\sin\theta\right)-G\left(|\mathbf{b}|\cos\theta,|\mathbf{b}|\sin\theta\right)\right],$$

where

$$\begin{split} H(u,c) &= \int u \, \log \left(u^2 + c^2 \right) \, du \\ &= \frac{1}{2} \left(u^2 + c^2 \right) \, \log \left(u^2 + c^2 \right) - \frac{1}{2} \, u^2 - \frac{1}{2} \, c^2. \end{split}$$

In addition, let $l = |\mathbf{a}| + |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta$ and $m = |\mathbf{b}| \cos \theta$, then the elements of the second matrix in (5.3.20) are expressed as following:

$$d_{11} (\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \frac{1}{24} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} \left[H(l, c) - H(m, c) \right] - \frac{1}{24} \frac{m}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} \left[G(l, c) - G(m, c) \right],$$

$$d_{12} (\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = \frac{1}{8} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} \left[H(l, c) - H(m, c) \right] - \frac{1}{8} \frac{m}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} \left[G(l, c) - G(m, c) \right],$$

$$d_{21} (\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = -\frac{1}{24} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} \left[H(l, c) - H(m, c) \right] + \left(\frac{1}{24} \frac{m}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} + \frac{1}{12} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|} \right) \left[G(l, c) - G(m, c) \right],$$

and

$$d_{22}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = -\frac{1}{8} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} \left[H(l, c) - H(m, c) \right] + \left(\frac{1}{8} \frac{m}{|\mathbf{a}|^2} + \frac{1}{6} \frac{1}{|\mathbf{a}|} \right) \left[G(l, c) - G(m, c) \right].$$

For $\mathbf{F}_{2}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b})$, the multiplication of the piecewise linear functions in basis of test space likes

$$P(1-t,tx) = \begin{bmatrix} t-t^2 x & t^2 x \\ (1-t) + (t^3-t^2) x & (t-t^2) x \end{bmatrix},$$

we apply the same manner of discussing as $F_{1}(a, b), F_{2}(a, b)$ is obtained as

$$\mathbf{F}_{2}(\mathbf{a},\mathbf{b}) = -\frac{1}{288} \begin{bmatrix} 27 & 9 \\ 33 & 7 \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} d_{22}(\mathbf{b},\mathbf{a}) & d_{12}(\mathbf{b},\mathbf{a}) \\ d_{21}(\mathbf{b},\mathbf{a}) & d_{11}(\mathbf{b},\mathbf{a}) \end{bmatrix}.$$

In fact, the exact result in (5.3.19) has been obtained analytically for r = 2 as follows:

$$\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) = -\frac{1}{144} \begin{bmatrix} 17 & 9 \\ 33 & 17 \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} d_{11}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) + d_{22}(\mathbf{b}, \mathbf{a}) & d_{12}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) + d_{12}(\mathbf{b}, \mathbf{a}) \\ d_{21}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) + d_{21}(\mathbf{b}, \mathbf{a}) & d_{22}(\mathbf{a}, \mathbf{b}) + d_{11}(\mathbf{b}, \mathbf{a}) \end{bmatrix}.$$

.

Bibliography

- [1] Adams, R., Sobolev Spaces, Academic Press, New York, 1975.
- [2] Arnold, D. N. and W. L. Wendland, On the Asymptotic Convergence of Collocation Methods, Math. Comput. 41, (1983), 349-381.
- [3] Atkinson, K. E., A Survey of Boundary Integral Equation Methods for the Numerical Solution of Laplace's Equation in Three Dimensions, in The Numerical Solution of Integral Equations (Golberg, M., ed.), Plenum Press (New York), (1990), 1-34.
- [4] Atkinson, K. E., Piecewise Polynomial Collocation for Integral Equations on Surfaces in Three Dimensions, J. Integral Equations. 9, No. 1, Suppl., (1985), 25-48.
- [5] Atkinson, K. E., An Introduction to Numerical Analysis, John Wiley and Sons, Second Edition, 1989.
- [6] Bergh, J. and J. Löfström, Interpolation Spaces An Introduction, Springer, 1976.
- [7] Brebbia, C. A., Topics in Boundary Element Research, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, New York, 1984.

- [8] Brebbia, C. A., J. C. F. Tellers and L. C. Wrobel., Boundary Element Techniques: Theory and Applications in Engineering, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, New York, 1984.
- Brebbia, C. A. and J. Dominguez, Boundary Elements: an Introductory Course, Computational Mechan its Publn., (Southampton, England), 1992.
- [10] Chen, G. and J. Zhou, Boundary Element Methods, Academic Press, London, 1992.
- [11] Colton, D. and R. Kress, Integral Equation Methods in Scattering Theory, J. Wiley and Sons (New York), 1983.
- [12] Costabel, M. and E. P. Stephan, Boundary Integral Equations for Mixed Boundary Value Problems in Polygonal Domains and Galerkin Approximation, in Mathematical Models and Methods in Mechanics, Banach Center Publications 15, (1981), 175-251.
- [13] Costabel, M. and E. P. Stephan, On the Convergence of Collocation Methods for Boundary Integral Equations on Polygons, Math. Comp., 49, (1987), 467-478.
- [14] Costabel, M., Boundary Integral Operators on Lipschitz Domains: Elementary Results, SIAM J. Math. Anal. 19, (1988), 613-626.
- [15] Elschner, J. and L. G. Graham, An Optimal Order Collocation Method for First-Kind Boundary Integral Equations on Polygons, Numer. Math. 70, (1995), 1-31.
- [16] Elschner, J. and E. P. Stephan, A Discrete Collocation Method for Symm's Integral Equation on Curves with Corners, J. Comput. Appl. Math. 75, (1996), 131-146.

- [17] Elschner, J., S. Prössdorf and I. H. Sloan, The Qualocation Method for Symm's Integral Equation on a Polygon, Math. Nachr. 177, (1996), 81-108.
- [18] Elschner, J. and L. G. Graham, Quadrature Methods for Symm's Integral Equation on Polygons, J. 1 ref MA Numer. Anal.
- [19] Fichera, G., Linear Elliptic Equations of Higher Order in Two Independent Variables and Singular Integral Equations, Proc. Conference on Partial Differential Equations and Continuum Mechanics, Uni. of Wisconsin Press, Madison, Wisconsin, (1961), 55-80.
- [20] Hsiao, G. C. and R. C. MacCamy, Solution of Boundary Value Problems by Integral Equations of the First Kind, SIAM Rev. 15, (1973), 687-705.
- [21] Hsiao, G. C. and W. L. Wendland, A Finite Element Method for Some Integral Equations of the First Kind, J. Math. Anal. Appl. 58, (1977), 449-481.
- [22] Hsiao, G. C., P. Kopp and W. L. Wendland, A Galerkin Collocation Method for Some Integral Equations of the First Kind, Computing, 25, (1980), 89-130.
- [23] Hsiao, G. C. and W. L. Wendland, The Aubin-Nitsche Lemma for Integral Equations, J. Integral Equations, 3, (1981), 299-315.
- [24] Hsiao, G. C., P. Kopp and W. L. Wendland, Some Applications of a Galerkin Collocation Method for Boundary Integral Equations of the First Kind, Math. Meth. Appl. Sci. 6, (1984), 280-325.
- [25] Hsiao, G. C., On the Stability of Integral Equations of the First Kind with Logarithmic Kernels, Arch. Rat. Mech. Anal. 94, (1986), 179-192.
- [26] Hsiao, G. C., On Boundary Integral Equations of the First Kind, J. Comput. Math. (Beijing) 7, (1989), 121-131.

- [27] Jaswon, M. A., Integral Equation Methods in Potential Theory, I, Proc. Roy. Soc.Ser. A 275, (1963), 23-32.
- [28] Jaswon, M. A. and G. T. Symm, Integral Equation Methods in Potential Theory and Elastostatics, Academic Press, New York, 1977.
- [29] Kupradze, V. D., Potential Methods in the Theory of Elasticity, Israel Programme of Scientific Translations (Jerusalem).
- [30] Kress, R., Linear Integral Equations, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, 1989.
- [31] Kress, R., A Nyström Method for Boundary Integral Equations in Domains with Corners, Numer. Math., 58, (1990), 145-161.
- [32] Le Roux, M. M., Methode D'elements Finis pour la Resolution Numerique de Problemes Exterieurs en dimension 2, R. A. I. R. O. Numerical Analysis, 11, No. 1, (1977), 25-60.
- [33] McLean, W., Boundary Integral Methods for the Laplace Equations, Ph.D. Thesis, Australian National University, Canberra, Australia, 1985.
- [34] McLean, W., Variational Properties of Some Simple Boundary Integral Equations, Proceedings of The Center for Mathematical and Applications, ANU, 26, (1991), 168-178.
- [35] Mikhlin, S. G., Mathematical Physics, an Advanced Course, North-Holland (Amsterdam), 1970.
- [36] Nedelec, J. C., Curved Finite Element Methods for the Solution of Singular Integral Equations on Surfaces in R³, Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, 8, (1976), 61-80.

- [37] Prössdorf, S., Numerische Behandlung Singulärer Integralgleichungen, ZAMM
 69 (4), (1989), 5-13.
- [38] Prössdorf, S. and B. Silbermann, Numerical Analysis for Integral and Related Operator Equations, Birkhäuser (Basel), 1991.
- [39] Rannacher, R. and W. L. Wendland, On the Order of Pointwise Convergence of Some Boundary Element Methods. Part I: Operators of Negative and Zero Order, RAIRO Model. Math. Anal. Numer. 19, (1985), 65-88.
- [40] Rannacher, R. and W. L. Wendland, On the Order of Pointwise Convergence of Some Boundary Element Methods. Part II: Operators of Positive Order, Math. Modelling Numer. Anal. 22, (1988), 343-362.
- [41] Sloan, I. H. and A. Spence, The Galerkin Method for Integral Equation of the First Kind with Logarithmic Kernel: Theory, IMAJ. Numer. Anal. 8 (1988), 105-122.
- [42] Sloan, I. H. and A. Spence, The Galerkin Method for Integral Equation of the First Kind with Logarithmic Kernel: Application, IMAJ. Numer. Anal. 8 (1988), 123-140.
- [43] Sloan, I. H., Error Analysis of Boundary Integral Methods, Acta Numerica 1, (1992), 287-339.
- [44] Stephan, E. P. and W. L. Wendland, Remarks to Galerkin and Least Squares Methods with Finite Elements for General Elliptic Problems, in Partial Differential Equations (Lecture Notes in Mathematic 564) Springer-Verlag (Berlin) 461-471, and in Manuscripts Geodaetica 1, (1976), 93-123.

- [45] Stephan, E. P. and W. L. Wendland, An Augmented Galerkin Procedure for the Boundary Integral Method Applied to Mixed Boundary Value Problems, Appl. Numer. Math. 1, (1985), 121-143.
- [46] Wendland, W. L., Boundary Element Methods and Their Asymptotic Convergence, in Theoretical Acoustics and Numerical Techniques, CISM Courses 277, Springer (Berlin, Heidelberg, New York), (1983), 135-216.
- [47] Wendland, W. L., Asymptotic Accuracy and Convergence for Point Collocation Methods, in Topics in Boundary Element Research, Vol. 2: Time-Dependent and Vibration Problems, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, (1985), 230-257.
- [48] Wendland, W. L., Strongly Elliptic Boundary Integral Equations, in the State of the Art in Numerical Analysis (A. Iserles and M. J. D. Powell, eds.), Clarendon Press (Oxford), (1987), 511-561.
- [49] Wendland, W. L., Boundary Element Methods for Elliptic Problems, Mathematical Theory of Finite and Boundary Element Methods, Birkhäuser (Basel), (1990), 219-276.
- [50] Yan, Y., First Kind Boundary Integral Methods for Two-Dimensional Potential Problems with Singularities, Ph.D. Thesis, The University of New South Wales, NSW, Australia, 1989.
- [51] Farin, G., Curves and Surfaces for Computer Aided Geometric Design Academic Press, Inc. (1988).
- [52] Gregory, J. A. and R. Delbourgo, Piecewise Rational Quadratic Interpolation to Monotonic Data, IMA Journal of Numerical Analysis, (1982), 2. 123-130.